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NON-CONFIDENTIAL

|
?
":ﬂ:‘“l Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)
At Asspis
LE T Quick atbeis
Ly e B Cush and cash equivalents
XL Possbool . Jocal y
LR L Prssbook accounts_forsign currency
| [ _s1% Checking sccounis_forgign currency
U et _dast Checking accounta_lecol comrency
FHAFH Y 2HE_YA b Crsh equivalent Anancal | ;_local o
72 09E421 Cash equivalem securitles
4 F U4 2425 Cash equivalent financial inttruments_foreign currency
G E Shart iorm (inancial instruments
e E_HAisk Shoct tarm fiaanciol i  Jocal Y
)5 4 _shot Shoet lerm financiat instnuments_foreign currency
L s R SBort term special purpose cosh and drposiu
arigay Trading secusitics
i e B Y_P el Trading securities_piocks
ar) e eN_ Wil Trading securities_bands
b oyl al_2|u} Trading securltics_other
L MEad Acsounly recaivoble
SIS Shart 1erm laans
U [mee Nontrada receivable
o) &g Nentrade receivable_tax
A 4fo| 28 Nomrade recelvabla_employee
459 |Acerucd inceme
LR i I B Financial instrurnonts socrucd fncome_local purrensy
YA Abolgpal o] & Cosh equivatenis necrued income_local surroncy
Y Ao #e Cash equivalents acenued income_Foreign currency
4ol T s Finania) ingtroments accroed income _orsign currency
A7 38 eey Securliics necrucd income
i Advance paymenys
4l Propoid expenses
Hitatg)el 2} Prepaid intenast exponses_barrowings
Hngn Prepuid insursncs expenses
Zieg a4 [Qther prepaid expantes
e i Vatug added 1ax_purchase
AR A YA Vakae tdded 1ax_purch
713 itg Suspanse payments
U5R# |Advanced payments 1 offices
grIMEseey Short term avallable for sale scouriiics
LR E e o L Shon term ovallable for sake sceurities slocks
W2l S A e Short tetm availabie for asle securisles_bords
Wil 2o e N _ate Shor berm for sl
w2 ebe Ry 2y Shar tenns available for vale pocurities_other socurition
SFEAUNRA BN Cusrent portion of held 10 maturity securitics
QU LH2Y_44 Current portion of held to manmity seousies, bonds
A Prepaid income taxes
e A A A Propakd Income taxes_oversess subsidiaries
nAgEA4 Financial derivative asscts
7|44 §arat Shart tarm flnanclal derivarive assew
8432 a4 At Curvent partion of lang 1o1m derlvalives assets
i Guaranice deposits
Az A a4 Arpets 10 be sold
L [#A A epatat Coniract snsled oases
Tl en a7 g A | Pinanclal aspet at Fair vaduc thraugh profit o loss
i |7 hgabap Gther quick mesels
! [|Asear Inventories
| A#umar Finished goods
A A 2 A {Semi Nalshed goods
1
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!
At::::’:nl Account Name (Korean Name) Acconnt Name (English Name)
ael A Undergrade poods
EES/2 hibit.] Manufaciured goods
LEi 5] Processed producis
WAk A bt By products
8 A uApt Marchandiser
i Ay A 224 Construction invempries
S |elaaE Pinfshed goods in transit
i L RE Raw tmalérials
BN Sxazyd i Xaw maierials_sandards
HAgR Fuel nnd mareriols
IHEEETDY Other materdals
{ W gn Raw materials in tronsit
| A HMOHAbeorption Raw raaterials overhead pbeorpion
Pl [ms1qaarses fncldental eost_torlff overveas subsidiorles
vabgagan Fucl and malcrials in traneit
A LMOHAbsorption Fuel and maierialy averhend absorptian
] afela) A Research materials in srangie
B F AN Work in process_temperary sccount
| (IEls) ALY Crher invanieries
HTHCIEE wip
T Invesbmenis
1 A4S Leng term financial instruments_speciol purposs cash and deposits
U [preaas48_ A Long term finaneinl [nptrements)_losel currency
L |ertagagae o Long ferm finaacial [on _forclgn y
IS EELE] JLang term finaneial Instrursenite_tpecial purpade cosh and deponits
HEEEER TR [Loag term sveliabie for sale sceunties
L Janassrpea_aw Jt.omg 1cm availabla far sabe securitics_bands

BAME g 5U_4)

|Leng verm avaitable for sale seauritics_stocka

Rz A

Lomg lerm available For sale pecurilios_invesirments

A7IREr eS8 St Long term avaflabic for sala securitier_oiher socurilion
CR e Rt 3] Leng e hield W maturity securltics
A2 w2 M Held to maturity socutitios_bonds
A9 SRR Investment stockes using equity mothed
Arldlel# Lowg term losns
A0 4 Loag term trade receivable
' |2anss ILons {erm: guarsniea deposits
U [eld el [Defeaved income tax axsers
|| |9t s Jeomener ssuted acset
B7ivipgq Lang term ccrued income
458 Lang term recoivable_advance payments
L | RS2 Long berm receivibic_nontrade recoivable
|| [#n1damig Long term propaid en;n_m
T Invastment propenics
NEESEEET, Ottier noncurrons asteu
e e e Long 16t financial derivative srvels
A7) 244 Bapt Long rerm financia! derivative nssets
4 2k Propenty, Plant and Equipment
£ Lard
El3 Bulldings
R Struciures
HEEE] Machinery and equipment
U g3 Construction equipmient
AP Vehgles and iransponation equipment
FPH)F Insirument and tools
Ul Fumntiore and fixte
B4} Lente aasety
LE Gk ] Mechinery In tranalt
2P Loasehold impravemenig
PAL A A4t ploration tengible pszer
Cu A Construction in progress
aadan Conatruction in progress_wages ond salaries
RG] C ion in progress_exp
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POSCO
|
A:‘::;:dit Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)

o)At Constructlon in progress_taphialization of Interest cost
F 4 24 Intangible msaty
2704 Goadwill

|| [eaAan industrisl puopatty Hights

LT EL] Lesae rights
7] o] Development costs
ahyhaA| ol 3 Pan facility wago righn
U4 Rzt Construction in progress

L] | A osural ploration imangible seset
Ry A Mine development Intangible asset
21 e 4k Qthor inlongblo asseis
FeapabrtA A Intangibic nssels_temporary account
ik e i A L gible assets_temporary t_labor coats
T2k 2 gitle asmts_temporary (_exp
24424 Intezcompany trnnsaciion codz_nsseis

A AL _A R AR A

Intercompany transaclion sode_rsets_reseivablo and payable offaat

#AABAE_A 44 4N

Intereompany trananetion code_nssots_slimination of unrewlized gain on inveatory

L b L R

Inlercampany traneartion oode_nesets_elimination of untealized pain on property. plant snd equipment

Alsrel o] x5iel4 W8}

A APRL A} | Intercompany transactlon code._resets_investments

3 Liobilities

Mg Current liabilities

o ) sl Accounts paysble

w@rlagla | Shant tenm borrawings

71800 7, 0 2 | short e borrowinga_tocal currency

D21 440 F_o1 |3hor: tem borrowlags_focelgn corrency

Ay Bonk overdraft

wix| it Nomirade payable

Hed PrT———

g Withholdings

RYAUArHF Withboldings_insurance preminns

Ak A B s Wikheldings_sadories Incoms tax

ek bl g Withhaldings_tesident tax

ol ad Withhaldinge_salaries decuetion

| A AL Widiholdings_overscas subsidiaries

AiHido B Withholdings_awschwwezt far receivable
|| HsEne Accrusd expenses

Acuruod Inierest experacs_local cumrency

At alstvl ol-4_si ot

Acarucd Interest cxpensds_lovsigs cumeny

R 2L Jiscome iax payslto

of A glatel A el Income tax payable_overseat subsiclaries
al X 79 a3 Dividend paynble

4§ Current portion of lung terin Habillides

HEAR 408 _A0~ 8t

Current porticn of long term borrewings_local currency

bk ed Bk T

Current portion of long lerm bomowings_forelgn eurrency

HE90Y Current portion of oversens public barrowings
4+99 Unearned revonues
- HrE A g Long teem provivioa Eability
ol 2 or A Frovision for boauses
il ehdos &l Value added 1ax_gales
| [ atamgai oty Valus added tax_sales_overseas subsidiaricy
Vs |Suspenae poynble—-_
L ] [Derivaiives linbitiies
1w AL Shon (erm derivatives Nabilliles
4887 A Curvent portion of long term derivadve Habilities
Er Ty Capital Teage liabilitiet
Ll ta-d Guarantee doposiL
ul2fed 30 Lintillsics w0 be sold
(- g a3 Guaranteed liobilides
blai4e Dafetred sovenucs
| EECTY Contract scaled deb
‘ Il'i!’l@“-! D4 24§20 Finanalol liabfhity st Fair value through profit or loss
{[wal a-g05 0 Othe curen liabilitien
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AZ:::J“ Account Name {Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)}
L ] Noncurrent Hobilfias
FAR] Dabentures
a2\ abel o Long torm bomrew ngt
\ A1 At v gl Long wrm bommowings [n loes] currency
‘ A2 A9 _o1 % Loog term basrawings In foreign currency
g Lo frams olher country
Bt Loan from olber country
A7) AG Lang term sccounts payable
yypal gy Pravision for sevarance benveliy
B A Accummlnted depreciation
o] Pl N Deferred Habilides
221025 Long sarm nontrads payable
i db ] Long term ungamed revenues
3719 QR4 Leng lerm ecrutd) expenses
AvrakA Conventibla debentures
A A Rt Dieb with stock purshaes wamant
A PR N Long lorm pravision liubillties
TrAdeE Long term advarce received
FldpupH Lonp Lom guaranice deposiu
A7)0 QAN Long term derivative dfabilitios
o1 aE R Long term derivative inkilities
L3 3 XD ] Guacaniced listililies
Arlojd g0 Long seom deferred revenues
W5 31 4 A9l Coniracs sewled debt
Arlag2 =4 Copital leate liabitities
fgAddRauiF Goverment Subsidy_propenty; Plant and Equipment
¥y4ddanzg Goverment Subaidy _{ntangible asset
Weapapabita g g t subsidy_ |
uhol 454 | Other noncurrant Habllities
dePeE [Allowance For bad debt
ekl L Allowance for bod dobt_nccounty recelvable
L] |@eidel 3ostRa Allowance for bad delyr_ghon teem Joang
L rledd e Alkwance for bad dobi_nontrade reccivable
L eetiqetes Allowsnee for bod debd_acesurd incon
HBE2 PR | Allowance for bad debi_sdvence payments
NG S Allwanco for bod debt_gencral deposhs

w8 @ aarade) &g oo

Allowance for bad debs_peaeral depoaits_other quick ssen

37clo| G et i

Allowance for bad debi_fong tenn loans

| Bl b A A ST Allewance for bad dobx_long tevm accounts rescivable
\[ P2 & e R | Allowance for bod debe_long Letm duposig

L [#2niepuaesws Allowance for bad debl_long tenm_secrucd incame

U lanunsaeren Allowanca for bod debe_long serm_sdvance paymonts

Al RdERHE

Allowanre for bad detn_long 1erm_nontrade receivabla

ZIstoju) 4§ itk e p G 7

| Allewance for bad debe_other noncurrens asset

ARY BT Allowance for Inventaries valuation

AN 7125 Allowanee for goods valumion

YEYe IR Allewance for merchandises valustion
|| [datgaaanslr e Allowancs for sonstrution inventories valusion
HjeEunen Allowanee for tem! finighod gocds vahisticn
I e Al for umdacgraced goods valual
e starge Allowance for by products valuation
|eanAedpun Allgwance for rvw mrscrials valismion
ldanazynedre Allowance for moterials valustion

e} a7t g g Allewance for other inveniories valuation

S Aler Al Accumulated impaianents

e S L T

Acgumulaicd impairmans for land clasgified as tangible assets

U g &dAtE AR

Accumylnted impalrments for buildings claasified as tangible sssess

AL IR FegA ey Ay

Accumulated inpaioments for structures classitied oo tangible atseis

[ gnesaerny Accumulasod bmpoierments for machivery
| [dHg v estarg Accumulused impaimnenia for on caip
L |HesnFeansrdy Accumilated impairmonts for vahicles

- JEFF AT @A A ol A

A lated fmpai for toolt and fixture
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}
A:;‘:?' Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)

WHE &4 A& Al Accurwsted impolemenis for equipment and furnfture
#f ol axp e g R Accumulated impsirments foc Minaacial Jease uscts
E A Papihdgabdp 8 Accumulated impairments for leatehold improvements
UH B YUAhE Ak A o Accmulaed impairments for asset for construttion

| gD e i e ] Accumulaied impairments for short teem svadlable foc sale serurities

Ml e e k] Acoumulated irapairmants for current portion of long term held to matuly securities
L e L e [Actunulaied impairments for available for sale securities

U2 LA YA dr A

Actamulaied impafrmantg for held to maturity securitles

216} A Al b & e A A

tAccumultated impalrments for ather invesiment axsets

Rap AL EAE KA G Ab AL dstp A Accumulated impalrments For Jand classifled as investment propentien
AR UESANSE AN Accumulated impairments for buitdings clasified sg in properti
LAl g} Foiagareirgy Accumulated impalements for structures closs! ied o investment propertics
FASBA_7)0H0 AR O AN Accumukated impairments for other invesiment propeniss
g 7 AL @ a2 o Accumulted impairments far Nalurat resources exploration wnglble aise
ALY PR Y A abE AR e 2 of Accurnulnted impoirments for Natural resources explomtion intangible masel
A4 3 43T 4] @A ALG - Y A Inted impai for I siocks wiing equity method
kit o ek Accumulnmd mpalrmienis for advaneed payonents of purchuie order
| lusseanesstergn Accummulaed mpafiments for pregressive sccqunts recelvablo
AT YA Ay A 2 Acsumuland impalsments for mine developmnt intangiblo aste
ol yiel 2N 7 H uki A lated knpal for doferred anrcis
ol g ey e d Accumminted impairments for deferred nszets
PR AL el Intercompany transaction code._|iabithiles
AL AT Intercompany transaction code_llub{liiles_receivable and payable offset
| Apaf 5] A}y A 1 Py code_{isbiKrics_glimination of lized gain on i y
BRARNS_R P 444 Intercompany (ranszction code_iabivies_etimination of uncealized gain on PPandE
b Equlty
A Copital siock
AL e g Capitol surplos
4]0 N i Poid in capital in excess of par vatue
LE HULE: Astet reevaluation rumplus
b B Gain on merge and peqrisition
e | Galn from retirement of copital wock
A 7] fo4 s) kel 9l Gain on disposal of irensury stoek
Ad Ay ol u g Adjustmant caplial surplus by equity meihod
2ivko| A g ol g Olher capital Rurphis
o8] 9|3 Rewatned eamings
ole) il g Legad reserve
WY AUB Legal reterve
VA¥HE Voluntary mesrve
aj Akl Yo Unappropristed retnined exming
Moo el Reuined carnings before lransfer
AUER L o 3 of A lation of other comprehonsiva gain or logs
g2 Other comprehensive income ar less_ndfusimen by oquity mehod
S RN ey Gain or lois on vahmilon of evailabls for sale securitiey
W72 H WY Qain on valuasion of svailabike for sale securities
vt g AR red 104 on valuation of available for sale
o)A abea] Gain or los5 61 ranslation of overseas aperntions
AR FH e Cain o loss on valuation of derivauves
bt 0 B Bdga) Lose o valusilon of derivatives
g AHE ] 71249 Gain on valuation of derivatives
0] SR8 4Rt AL e Poreign translation gain or Joss ca non-deivmive Basncial Sramument
ARz Revalyntion reservos
AHEEY Capltal sdjustments
A28 Treapury stock
WA Ciher capital adjustments
ujzhed 3 Equities to be sokd
] x) g Noncontrolling fnserests
R Al Noncontrolllng interests_capitsl iock
|z AR aprgalF [Noncoatrolling interests_caphial surplus

vl g "9 7

IN: 1ling i ;_prior year

ned sarning

WX & _7| @ole)

MNongontrolling interests net ineomg

M R ] A4

L Hing i ;| y slack

5
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1
A:‘;TI:P* Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)
Aol A 7 ehahik sy Noncontrolting (mesesis_oiher capital adjuniments
R L L b ke Noneantralling istecesta_juin or loss on valustion of availoble for sales
M| A A Gy A E Noneontrolling interests_other cumprehensive income o loss_adjusiment by equkty methad

WER A o] A g A

Moncoatrolting Intecess_orher comprehensive loos_sdjurinent 38 on valuation by ecity method

u]a) s o Al dhab e

Nongontrolling infencets_gain or lots on transiotion of peratl

)i s 46 8 7haba)

Moncoatralling interens_galn or loas on velamien of derivaives

W17 A 1A_V] AR 21 2 Aol

Noweontralling intercsir_gain or loss ot valualion

vl A g AR Y E

Nowcontrolling {nieresi_revalustion ressrves

. YAAblA 2 Intercompany transastlon_cquitles
x| AL Y _Ab {Intercompany transacilon_equitles
H et Income
H Jam Jsales
Axtg Ao Sales_stee} finished grods
UG g Sales_steet by products
Agetagdeadg Soles_sice! somii finiahiod goods
AP au Sales discount_steel
AAAHEW o [ sutes_steet merehandises
AR Bl B R | sutes_steet underpracied goods
HRA2GFALY Isdu,ml manufactures
A7 A |!nlu_nul outseurting goods
o u| 2 o) o Isuics_onergy business
ENGAL A %9 Salos_sngineering business
Al v g o Sales_[T equipment
AL Sates_[T vquipment
| W]\ 2 st 2 9 {Sales_nonsicel material buslness
U] [oaevuas Jsotes servions
Fapul o Snles_consiruction business
PR L Construcilon soles_fixed nmount
YA d_NSoiE Construct{on sales_progreaive amount
| [ s Soles_IT services
|| |oatgodvige_sgud 1T services sales_fixed amount
] [natgomiee_gzmas IT services 1ales_progressive amaouait
s aves Sales_fucilities business
L] agavan Sales_station operuming buslness
| anzuge Sulvs_outecurcing products
Advi i ISIIH_IMMIMHI
| |eage I5alet_diswibuticn business
| Sl ol Sales, distribution business
R ] Sakes_coanuliing service
[ regdengw Sales_conpulting service
v {Sales_pritning business
Wtk sy IS ules_refractorineyx business
Ul S EA IR g | Sales_refractoriness businass
[ | [ ARl Sales_leisure business
r BF Eal) Lonse nalca
L] ol g9 Rovenue from pan fhcilitly use
| AR Trading Sokes
U [abapep e ‘Trading Sales
PREAY Commidsslon sales
g {ulex discount_nonntesl
kg Eod i |s-|u discount_noasteel
HA|Ap] Intercompany tronsaction cods_gokes
Ziwiot o Other sales
YUy Nen operating incame
o} 4+al Interest Incame
@42l [interest {income_cosh snd cash equivalenys
F§3F el 2bna) Financinl fnetruments interest income
SR 2 o) A=) Infereat income_shart term invesiments securitics
| |7 Y ol abae Interen) income_tong term nvestments securities
i{ W49 Dividend incomo
L[|HdR |rental income

&7l el 5 Aatitol

]Gﬂln an disposal of inkding securlties

6




poscq) NON-CONFIDENTIAL
[
At:?i:F Account Name {Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)
1] |eiolapalal el e Giain on dispossl of Tading securitics
( - : 7| vfop i A3 7ol 4 Gain on valuailon of trading securilies
S \ o 7] bl ] i 7po] ) Galn on veluation of trading securities
1 faape Poreign momsoerion guin
‘ a4 =14 Forsign trantaciion galn
LR LR ] Foreign tramaction gala on short term bomowings
2|29 BRA Fornign transaciion gein on long teon bomowings
! Eigigied o Forelgn menzaction gain on loans fhom othier eouniey
i | [seoTmatate Forrign fon gain on tpos J
U |eensune Foeeign itm iin an financial i
‘ 2| shof 2.0 B A ALY Forgign wansection pain on avalloble for sale pecurities
2] shatat el o Forclgn wansiation gain
‘ o84 24| Forelgn translation pain en cash and eash equivalents
i e E L ] Forelgn transiation gain on shon term borrovdngs
! A71AEH4e Porcign translation gain on [ong ierm borrowings
| At erabe] Ferelgn translation galn o loans from other country
AL Foreign tranalstion pain en Bnancial inetrumens
¥ #tel B 2Hg 4 o thabal Foreign translotion gain on available for ale secwritios
# 4y o) Gain on valuetion by equity meihod
ol 5 2He 4 & Ak e 4] Reverys! of availuble for ale securitios impairment Joa
o 27HEE U O K] Reverse) of nvailable for sole securities impairment los
i s BUL L Gain on dispasnl of shart lerm availpble for sale securities
71 s g A o)y Gain on diaposs! of shart lem avaliable for sole securities
A A} 4b4) 2ot o} Gala o disposal of tangible asses
ALapalatole) Galn on redemption of debenturey
D] ey Gain on transactions of decivatives
V] Iy g ARy Guta on trnsactions of dertvatives
|| [ Esely (Gain on voluatien of derivatives
(’"'-4 | [sraagnta Gain on valation of derfvarlves
W L dasdaug) Reverse of bad debt allewance
L e g aia del Gain on disposal of oiher noncurrent mepcts
H [reaseaseny Reversol of tangibla assets impairment loss
V| Pk B0 Aitolg) Gain on dirpasnl of long term avoilable for anke securities
P23 AN 120)9) Galn on dispos] of Tong 16t avaifebls for sale sequrllles
| (7R 4B AL o)) Gain on disposal of held 1o maiurity securiiles
U7 IR RN o9 Gain an disposal of hald to matority securiiies
AR ol g Gein on disposal of nvensories
APEHT o] A o)y Galns on disposal of equity Invesiments
@ anpdegnenq Reveran) of held ta maiurities securities Jmpairmont Loss
| AR A ENT) |Reversal of held ta maturities sceuritics Impaimment Less
| g etsen Revereal of othar noacurrent nasels Impaleren Loas
|| [ gataajpatel Gain on dispasal of intangiblc assets
i Rkl L] Reversal of intangible nasets Impainment loss
ek hiaiEini] Reverse of negative goodwill
sty Reverse of sllowance Habilides
7| eqrFgei) Gaiza on prior peried error corveetion
Bap- A g @il g) Reveraa! of invasmont propertics Impaiment Joss
| [ 4k oy of Gain on diaposal of intanglble assets
L] |z b e Aty Reversal of Smpmirnant [os1 of assels t0 be sold
[ o2l (Gin on disposal of asseis 1o be skl
Cad 30 Gain on guarantaed liabd)rfes
REFHY Goveriment subdidy rales
4 b g 84 Reversol of stock compensation expenss
| [{%asere v oty Revenue fram seitled contrace eptionevaluntion
| |g71ed QA 98 #E sl Gnin on disposal of firancial instrument a¢ il vakeo theough profis or loes
{ ’ : er1ena 9029 ¢ 28979 Quin on valoaiion of fnancinl instromen ol fair value throngh profil or lois
Sar HEF PS40 Reversal of (mpal loss on odvanced pay of purchuse arder
LG YU EFaLe 0 R 1 of Impal toss on prog: receivable
SAlAHrY Int¢reompany transaction code. income
k) Miscatianeous Incame
| [pitery Misccllaneang Income
| [Egataeln lDiuconliwed operation incoms
7
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&
A:'::I'j"‘ Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)
L AT DL DHrcontinued opermtion income
AR AT dNSER Reverm! of Impsinmant loss on Investment Facks using exqulty method
B ajabs) shyat ol Net income of consclidmed subaldiaries before acquisition
&84 whp U@ ol Net facome of consalidalod subsidiarles bafore acquisiiion
AE?1 @l Consclidating net income
ul-g Gxpaniss
: A4 471 Con of sales
i AzAEqt 4t Cost of goods sold
' |raawadr (Cont of by producs sold
L [egagast (Com of kexn Minished goods sold
i A& Y71 Com variances of sieal salos
A &y a3 | Deduciion of steel cost of sales
{7Hato] Cost veriances
20 524 Cost of undergraded goods sold
A Fadart Cost of manufaciures sold
A3 43442} Cout of atee! murchandises soki
1 ERCh He e o ] Cost of sieel outsoreing goods sold
: AN AR 24 Loss on Fioel inveniary valuation
[ of uf X ol 4 417} Cogt of encegy business
IEET T L Coat uf district Bealing business
|| |eeasigan \Cost of engincering Facilities business
! Aol & 417t Cost of IT sqpments sold
|| [2lebeleiaddst Cost of IT equipmenia soid
V| [nazagazas Cont of nonsioe] material business
N i ek Coat of services soles
P B} Cot of construction sales
| [l ERl ot Cost of construction sales
IREETEEETES Cott of IT torviees vales
| (et Cost of I7 services sales
] [eedanas Cont o fucilitics services business
| 4eguaun Cost of waler_station operating Eusinoss
| |ers7ia e maao) Cost of sales_central transshipment simion operuting buriness
LNGZI 29 3 ) Cott of rlng_LNG siation operuting business
LR ALk Cast of cutsourcing salcs
(| | Cost of rexial revenne
il & i Cost of rental revenoa_labor costs
T EET Cout of rentad revente_overhesd costs
1T Cemt oF distribution sales
ik kg Coal of digtribution seles
AHEG- ol 2 42 Cost of consulting services saies
AC L A [Cost of mining busincss sales
ulgHiAb ol & 4 7 Cost of refracioriness business sales
2 vl A2t Coat of refractoriness business sies
B Akl g Y7} Cost of Iisure business sales
i BEY. G E TR Coat of merchandite yales_lense busi
] e aa Cowt of pot facllitly s
|| AU Cost of wading sales
| | ezt Cost of trading business
|| |eesgdaeas Coat of sommission salcs
|| [1aonat Othor ccat of ssles
N4 4 2habe] Cast variances of nontteel snld
4 & A oA Deduction of cost of nongiee] sold
Wl Bl bl Lass on nonsteel Invensory valuation
RaAlel g Ilmmwnpauy \rangaction code_purchasing
ghufl] s}38] ) |sciting and administrative axpenscs
Ci) Solaries
Age)_YYite] Selling and sdminismilve xpenses_selary xnd wage of direcions
|||l A4 Salling und sdrinistmtive expenses_salary and wage
U] [#aa)_sekaere I5elting and sdminlsizative cxpenses_salary and wape of pant timers
|| [ga)_ A aie Selling and adminisimiive expenses_salary and wope of emporary employees
HIEEEE Severnnca beneflis

w3_gA e sue

Selling and adminlstrative expentes_contribution 10 provision for severance benafils

a
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POSCO NON-CONFIDENTIAL
Accouh
code Account Name (Korean Name) Aceount Name (English Name)
v _s3g Selling and adminlgirative expenses_severnnce benefT
i B Y7y 8 Y i Selling and sdoiniswative expinsss_ defined soniribudon retiremnent penyion
T i B A ] Wel{zre expenses
] [akn_ska g g |seiting and adminigrative expenses_weiPare expenses
a2 3x) [Fravel expenses
g3hy) oju]BRY| Sulling and administrative sxponses_travel expenses
4 Communicalion expenses
gy g4 Selting and sdministrative expenses
| Blectricity expenses
o _yaju) Selling and adminisinative expenses_eicetricity exp
4] Water expénact
HH_&40) Selling ond edmininrmiive expondes_waler expeines
o &= ) Heating expentes
wai ol w4z Seiling and admini _healing exp
; A HEH | Taxes and dues
U jmeo_aausn FSelling and administritive wxpentes_tixes mnd ducs
L G ] Depraciation axponses
R _f P2 ] Selling and administrative expenses_depreciation
e _Taxpa g2 Selling and admininraive expenses_amortization
i ] apit AR 2Heb) Selling snd adminisiralive eapenses_depeecintion_investment properties
IREEEE Rentol experany
] [eud_Anexas Selling and. odministrotive cpenscs_rental axp
Pl | Ropairs expenses
FE)_=d Selling and adminisizative expenses_repairs expenses
LR Irdurante prembun
Y [adn_wyia Sciling and adminimraiive cxpenscs_jnsuranes premium
T Entertainmens exponses ~
Il CEI T Sclling and administrative expendes_cntertai p
234 A Adwartising sxpruses
o 2 _Rp | v Selling wnd admintaertive expenses_advertising expensas
R B B IOrdinny resqarch and developmen sxpens
|| 2k ISeEIinn nd adminisirative expenses_ordinary h and d
[ Jator_saba e an selting g sdminiiirative oxpensas_ardinaey research s develap six sigma
ir AFELR lSmieﬂ fees
| [ _assn J8elling and ackminiatrmvive oxpenses_service fos
e Rewards axpenges
| {mae_mapw Sclling and adminatrative expenses_reorards expenyes
T 22w Supplies expenses
| _ch 2 ) Salling and adminlstratlve expenses_supplies exp
| $u] Clolhes expenser
i exhu]_mi b Selling and adminisieacive expenses_clothes expenses
| =M Publication expenscy
I lagu_sagau Fsolling and adeministrotive expenecs._publicat
|| |atebgAu] [Vetictes maintenance exponses
|| [ s |Slllll|| and adminisoative exy _vehigles malntenance <xp
D |inchupiry uxyociation fous
L] Jewa_uay Selling tnd administrative expenses_ladustry ascociotion foes
MA-EU Teaining expenses
B3t} _m &) SeRiog snd adminiswative cxpenses_{raining expenscs
RIEEL Conference expenses
| et _sisym Selling ond adminisirative expentes_conference expanses
Bl ECTE [Compensation cxpense for caual
] [ma)_sia g Selling end admilstaeive expenses_comy penses for copuoliles
L [fangme Stock compensation expensen
U o _sst g g Selling 4nd adnrinistrative cxponses_siock compensation exp
| {Aasau {Muterial collection axpenses
| |g_sz ) Selling and adiniatrative i
ghe [Miseettancows axpenses
U {ada_gt ISclling and adminlsirative expenises_miscellancous expenses
LRk ) l!’rnllhl expenses
| [eem_ewusa [ setting and administrative sxpensce_frctght cxp
isasagun IOpm:ihg expenises for distribution center
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Az:n:;ﬁ\t Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (English Name)
] 2218 |5¢ling and sdminisirmive expenscs_opersting oxpensy for disiribution cemier
dgniE {Salcs commissions
BPu)_Fo] S4B Selling and administrative expenses_tales commissions
phe] 42204 Soles advertising sxpensos
g A3 ISellim and odminiirative cxpensce_sales advenising eapenscs
el 0] [Sates promenion xpenses
Shee_gep ) | setiing and adeniniseative axpenses_sales promerion exp
A [Sampe exponscs
aav]_yitu] Is-llb‘ and odministrotive expenses_sample expentes
SRl YR ISII:I tayurance premiuon
ER_BojR s Srlling and administrative oxpenses_goles insurancs premium
KRR ] Contribusion ta allowance of doubtful accounts
g St agagld Selling and ndministrative cxpenses_contribution ko all of doubiful
o @Akapw) Bad debl enpenses
shoj 4 Expenzes for recaiving orders
Hh]_ql o q R Sclling and sdminisiralive cxpeases_expenses for recciving orders
ki | Crher solling exponses
] siulgea Selling and adminisiativs expenses_other solling expenses
4598 Nonoporsting enpenses
=) fte| 2t Tnigrest expenses

‘ | A} 3} 0] &} Interest expenses_foreign ioans
U ekl Inkereas expenses_local bormowings
] [osasigen Inkerest expenses_foveigh borrowings
o getat expentes_trude
7| sl e gzhi) Onher bad debt cxpenses
| w7l ol F WA BBy Lot on disposal of wading securities
U] oo anued Lae on dizposa) of treding scourities
Lk LB B Loy on valustion of wrading securities
w23 dy el Loss on valuotion of imding securiiin
ARupa {uaraniee expenses
g2 Foreign transaction loas
SI3H A Al gab Foreign 1rangoetion loss,_cazh and cash equivaienia
GEE LRl Foreign \ronsaciion bass_shon torm bormowings
714N T BN Foeeign transaciion los_long tem bomwings
Al e Fureign tranraction foes_loans fromn foreign country
SPOTZ 8 g 2h& Foraign iransaction Joss_SPOT Lransagtion
AR S T Forelgn transaction boss_financial insiruments
9 shup R bR R S Forcign tranusction loss_availabla Tor sle socuriiien
P 51k ) Foruign translatien loxs
20 E At d Forcign iranslation |ose on sath and eash cquivalenia
74U ik Jroccign transiotion oz un short term borrowings
A2 52 $ike Forcign transtution koss on long term bormowingy
Ll (AEte Fareign translolion loes on Joans from other sauntry
|| [#easaoe Foreign translation loss on financial instruments
|| [ststu ot g datate Foroiga translation lots on avillable for sale sccurliies in forsign curvency
|| [ Donatigns
L k- Donationy_cash
b Dosstions_goods
b e s} Lost on valusiion by equity method
et adas P loss on ovailable for sale sccvrits
S M DAt Impalrovent ook an ovailsble for sale securiten
A wy d Loss on disposal of cquity investments
fH4 21akal it o4l Loss on disposal of rangible assets
AP ARt ) Lot on cedempion of debeniures
o Jac Gk e Lews on disposal of intanglhle araees
o442 e Lags on tramsactions of desivalves
S gEA e Lokt on transactions of desivatives
(e EY A e Lass on valustion of derivatives
E oYY A4 Lass on valuation of derivaives
Ao Idte tangible nsseis sxpenies
Frgaa e i Impairment Joss on tangible asets
ol £ 2 Fal g & Loxs on disposa) of i
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POSCQ NON-CONFIDENTIAL
A::‘:;:‘t Account Name (Korean Name) Account Name (Eaglish Name}
i b e o Sk ! |Loss om dispoaal of athes ngncusrent msets
("”";5 7SN f-E Akt ke fimpairment loss on other noncurrent assets
#47FR Financial service charges |
a4Pen Financial service charges ‘
AFgU] Payvnes discount charges |
42| WA AL Impairment (oas on held 16 maturily securities |
GG BRB4AE Impairment [oss on held to maturily securitics !
L b e e e Luss on dispoand of short torm avalioble for sales securities
H AR e AR e Loax on diponad of short term svailsble for salee securition
AR R AR AR Impak loss on i propenticy
F& Aitaip ke Impoirment loes on inwngible assols
A7l e yed Lotd on priur period e eamection
A7) ol 22N 1 o4 Loss on disposal of long tersy avallsbin for sales sccurities
ERE ol F3 0 2 B2 Loss on dispocal of lang term ovailabla for salos secrrities
' ensnrasgeed Lots on dispossl of held to maturity scourities
wAARAsML e Loas on disposa) of held 1o malurity securities
V] R e Loga ¢n disposal of Inventories
AR RLGA) Depletion toskcs on Inventodies
A&y Loss on caxuahics
e Sk L Loas on dispoasl of § propert
LR EE b Liae o dispossd of assets 1o bu sold
L] [zt kA S Impoirment boss o5 asecls to bo sold
| [ aunes Loss on guarsaieed Habilities
U] [ara s sreal 1ot o settted contract opionsvaluation
71 ool aa) A g fr kB Al dal Il.ou on dispasal of financinl instrumen at fadr value through proflt oc lass
i | (g1 x A g rREd [t.on on valuation of financial instrument ot fair value through profiL o lors
H [Awuaarasaedse JEmpasrment lom en investment socks using equity meihod
] |aasreeste Impairment fass on advanced payments of purchase order
(‘ | Jasagadeane Impainment lats on progressi hrabl
st Bl g Inicreompany Uransoction code_expensos
Ha Miscellaneous expenses
3ed] Miscellaneous expenses
AfAR]baA Aul§ Coatinulng business income tax
a4 Income tax expenses
ey Inhabriant tax expenses
aealged Distoutinuad iratfnesy Ings
L Iremaea Discontinued buslnoss loss
L] [eanatel pepueesn Nat Logs of consolidated subsldiarics bafore scquisition
] [ dsie GeRde s ot loss of consalidated subsidiories before acquisition
L] |z Manufacuring axpenses
Ynv) Row molerial cons
A Ru} Puel and watcrial costs
e i) Labor cons
204 2 fa] Manulwcturig expenses_mlary and woge
L ELIE A s ] Manufeciering expensos_salary and woge of gart tmers
AR)E_3 A4t Manufacturing expenses_salary wnd woge of temporary eployecs
A uig g8 &o Pd30UY Manufacturing expentes_contribution lo provision for % beriefis
Az g 3y Manulacluring cxpenacs_severance banofT
Ax0|§_d 4o Manifocturing expenses, sstary snd wage of directors
ol 3FA 7)ol i 5 o) ey Manufucturing expenges_defined contributian retirement pension
i) Cutsewreing costs
2] f_9) i) Munufacruring sxpenses_oulsoureing fepair coats
i [ {200 & r)Bg8u) . Munuftciuring eap:a:;uuwmhg wcrvice focs
ot Daproclation snd amonizalfon
|| [zv2_sraxpa g Manaficturing expansss_doprec]on
( . 3 LT e JManafacturing expansss_smortization
u. HED| LR g A4k 2 Manufacturing sxpenscs_depreciation_invosinent properifes
A General manufacturing expenses
Ao g Hoqxyqu) Manufaawring expanses_welfare expenses
| X)-3_of u] i Fu) Manufacturing expenses_iravel expenses
H2l4_galu Munufucluring expenses_communieation expenses
A2} g ] (g ]y IMmut‘wurIn; sxpenses_clocirlsily enpenacs_varinbla cost
11
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Account Name (Korean Name)

Account Name {English Name)

Axu)§_H9 ) (A

Manufacturing expensas_eletiricity expenses_{ixed gost

Aol §_§-pul(8FH)

II‘ focturing exy _Walsr gxp foble cont

Au)g_f-5ul(Pu)

anml'mrinx expensef_waler expanses_fixed cost

A4 _WmA=

|Massteturing expenses_heating ex;

EEIE R b0 Munufecturing wxponses_taxew and ducy
#2v)g_2dYAR Manufactusing expenses_rental exp

b - ) Mpnufhcwiriog expenses_ropains expesses
LR Mrwfeciuring expenscs_fnauwrancs premivm

A2l §_%Rau

Agasn| g iy av

Manufacluring expenses_enteriminment expenzes

P . "
el ! -

Az g AT AU

Manulettwing expenses_ordinmy rescreh end develapment expanss

A e K

&4 _Pinex Demo Plant Manufacturing expenses_Finex demo plan

ARG A E.64 a0} Manufucturing expenges_ordinary h and d qXpenses_Fix sigma
M (g yaspe Manufaciuring expentos_servies focs

LLELE R S Manufocturing expeores_tewards expenses

A kR EY Moauficturing experace_supglics exp

L ELIE R A Maonu(setaring expeases_clothes oxpenses

o) g =AR] 400 Manufacturing cxpenses_publicotion exponses

Azl s %A ) Mazulfacturing expensea_vehicles moi P

Ao §_¥aj] Manulacturing expesises, industry iation feos
| XML RmEFUN Manufaciuring expenses_irnining expenses
] |AEag_sialm Manufociuring expenses_conferance axpensas
3 M2l 8_o) ol A4k Manufacturing expenses_compenastion exp far casualtics
T

Muonufacturing expenses_conribueion o siownnce of doubtful sccounu

A4 4044

Manufcturing expenses_siock compenastion expenscs

Azvl g _Mddam

Manulacturing expenscs_onvironmental management expenses

A §-_ddal

Maonufweiarng exponsos_safely supervision expenscs

a2} §_FAhL i)

Manufasturing cxponses_freight expenses

| |z g_daegv Meoufactuting cxpenses_muierial collection expenges
\r o El A e B B | Manufacturing, sxpenscy_quality contrel expenser
v g_{in) Manufbcturing expenses_misceli
LR L Transfer sccount_self control secowits
| |y Transfer accouni_self vontrol sccounts
N EEEE] Transfer accouns_melf coairod secounts
7IckE b Other comprehensive inconte
Z)abE Yoy Other comprehensive Income
7 Z ey Othor comprehensive loss
o] g Uk { {Deferrcd tox adjusimonts_other comprehensive income o loas
| AR o | Congolidating secumulated other comprsenaive Income

12
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
POSCO:

ave audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of POSCO and
idiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 and related

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
abodt whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

lidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide & basis for our opinion.

respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and Jenuary 1, 2010
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, in
ce with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards,

Withbut qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

As described in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the useful life
of mfa;or machinery and equipment from 8 years to 15 years from January 1, 2011, For the year
ended December 31, 2011, this change resulted in a reduction in depreciation expenses of
1,227,169 million,




[l BN U3
hadl A R V)

The fprocedures and practices utilized in the Republic of Korea to audit such consolidated financial
statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly,
this feport and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are for use by those
knoxf dgeable about Korean auditing standards and their application in practice.

|

Semﬂ Korea
Marqh 8, 2012

This report is effective as of March 8, 2012, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or
circumhstances, which may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report,
could| have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
theretp. Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that the above audit report
has not been updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.




POSCO
Consolidated Statements of Financlal Position
As of Dacember 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010
|
|
(in mlifions of Won) Notes  December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
|
|
Alsc{t
Cash nd cash equivalents 4520 W 4598582 3,521,045 2273,059
Trade acoounts and notes receivable, net 6202534 11,450,513 9219,011 5,300,233
Other{ghort-term financial assets 720,34 31656270 4383302 7211,023
invenlories 3 12,283,634 9,559,206 4918413
Cui income (ax assets k)| 18,621 17,654 11,980
Assets held for sale 9 329,037 - 24,961
Cther|current assets 14 1,220,142 072159 690,186
'IT tal corrent assels 33,556,911 27672377 20,429,855
Lo - erm Urade nccounts and noles receivable, net 6,20 183,061 273,622 522,775
Othar{long-tenn financinl assets 720 5,125,672 6417038 5,308,660
Investinents in associates 10 3,831,659 3,306 425 950449
In ment property, net I 527,533 493,365 558,207
Property, plant and equipment, net 12 25453,184 25437740 20247
Intangible assets, net 13 5,244,928 4619169 754,231
Deforrod tax nssets k]| 855,603 538876 409,748
Other|long-lerm assets 14 630287 659814 250475
1
fp[nl non-current assets 44851927 41,746,049 31097292
ﬂ ol assets 37 W 78408838 69418426 51.527.147

|
See a¢

[

companying notes to consclidated financial statements.

FUBLIC



POSCO
Cod olidated Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010
I .
| [
‘ e
(i m}ﬂians af Wen) Notes Deeember 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
thilllties
|
Trade accounts and notes payable 20,34 w 4,397,279 3,980,701 2,392,317
Sl:ln-tenn borrowings and current instalimenis
| of fong-term borrowings 41520 10,791,510 10,476,300 3,958,099
Other short-term financial liabilities 16,2034 1,811,190 1,520,877 1,054,714
Curtent income tax liabilities i 509,709 779018 IR9,675
Linblities related to assets held for sale 9 226,607 - 80
Provisions 17 69432 63,809 63,305
Other current fiabilities 19,25 1,799,631 1,456,072 1,155,441
hotﬂ current Habilities 10,605,358 18,276,717 9,013,631
|
Long-term trade accounts and notes payable 20,34 383 378 -
ng-term borrowings,
| pxciuding current instaliments 4,1520 16,020,207 10,663,941 8,241,386
Other long-term financial liabitities 16,20 350,560 175,774 205,096
D. d benefit obligations 18 340,467 503,126 315,418
D d tax liabilities 31 1,168,097 1,028,728 377,539
Long-term provisions 17 109,343 152,149 12,005
Other long-term liabilities 19 84,503 80,386 28,391
otal non-current Habilitles 18,073,560 12604482 9,179.835 .
-
otal Habilities » W 37678918 30,881,259 18,193,466 N
Eqnl;t
Share capita) 21 W 482403 482,403 482,403
Capjtal surplus 2] 1,150,452 1,101,561 1,199,666
Resprves 22 405,426 1,507.288 833,806
Treasury shares 2] (2,391,406) (2,403,263) (2,403,263)
Retained eamings 38,709,475 35,887,697 32,567,332
Equity sttributabie to owners
| pf the controlling company 38,356,350 36,575,686 32,679,964
Noa-controlling intorests 2,373,570 1,961 481 653,717
i
}'l otal equity W 40,729,000 38,537,167 33,333,681
Total Hablities and equity W 78408,838 69418426 51,527,147
|
See derompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. [
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olidated Statements of Comprehensive income
he years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

before income tax
tax expense

for the period

comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

I ndjustment arising from investrents in equity-method investees
nges in fare value of available-for-sale investments

currency translation differences

benefit plan actuarial losses

omprehensive income for the period, net of tax

omprchensive income attributable to:
rs of the controlling company

Non-¢ontrolling interests

rompre hensive income for the period

¢ and duluted carniags per share

Seea

ompanying notes 10 consolidated financial statements.

Notes Decermber 31, 2011 December 31, 2016
26,37 W 68,038,725 47887255
9 (59.823,350) (39,722,461)
9,114,875 8,164,794
2729
(2,048,264) (1,500,370
(1,612,128) {1,120,340)
(3,660,392) (2,620,710)
28 337,078 231,387
29 (383,459) {341,951)
KR ) 5,408,102 5433,520
10 50,569 182,657
20,30 3,190,419 1,738,804
20,30 {3866,695) (20087,858)
4,782,393 $262,123
3137 (1,068,109) (1,081472)
37 3,714,286 4,185,651
(11,240) (40877
{1,231,758) 589,601
1,666 183,190
(30,577} {152,125)
W 2442377 4,765,440
W 3,648,136 4,105,623
66,150 80,028
W 3,714,286 4, 185565 !
W 2,530,437 4,639,671
(88,060} 125,769
W 2442377 4,765,440
32 W 47,224 53,297
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POSCO
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For} e years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(in nfilh'ons of Won) Note December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Casﬂ ows from aperating activities
Cashﬂencrated from operations W 3,127,905 4,350,095
Profit for the period 3,714,286 4,185,650
djustments 36 4,264,366 4617915
Chiinges in operating assets and liabilities 36 (4,850,747 (4,453.470)
Interést received 218682 322,659
Interest paid (745,111 (480,020)
Dividends received 308,692 141,017
Income taxes paid {1,218,602) (751,746)

Net cash provided by operating activities W 1,691,566 3,582,005

psal of short-term financial instruments 5,794,770 17,576,747
ase in boans 896,656 25946

ispbsal of available-for-sale investments 411,061 258,945

psal of other investment assets - 27257
psal of investments of equity-accounted investees 2,404 19,394
peal of property, plant and equipment 140,221 165,794

pesal of intangible assets 55,899 4,964

ceds from disposal of business - 6,747
isition of short-term financial instruments (4,556,340) (14,546,301)

dase in loans (962,099) (82,079

isition of available-for-sale securities (322,046) {561,030}

quistion of ather investment assets (450) (310,154)

isition of investments of equity-accounted investees (740,971) (914,491)
quisition of property, plant and equipment (5,330,968) (5,791,764)
isition of intangible assets (574,753) (246, 466)

ent for acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (437,464) (3,079,899}
T, net 107214 531,569
Net ¢ash used in investing activities W (5,516,866) (6,914,821)

See agcompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Casf;

eds

eds

(in fiflﬁom of Won)

flows from financing activities

from borrowings

nsal of treasury shares

from short-tenn borrowings

Repdyment of borrowings
Acquisition of treasury shares
Payment of cash dividends

Othe

Cu‘:
Casj;

, net

Net cash provided by fnancing activities

Effegt of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

and cash equivelents at beginning of the year
and cash equivalents at end of the year

|
k . See abcampanyz’ng notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 2011  December 31, 2010
7,068,322 4,367,193
164,384 6811
51,808 1,200,955
(1,746487) (8824717
(61,296) -
(770,858) 693,296)
194,012 588,575
4,899,885 4,587,761
3,052 (6,959)
1,077,637 1,247,986
3,521,045 2273059
4,508,682 3,521,045




POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

1. Ge%:eral Enformation

General information about POSCO, its 58 domestic subsidiaries (“the Company”)} including POSCO
Engincering & Construction Co., Ltd., 161 foreign subsidiaries including POSCO America
Corporation and its 91 associates are as follows:

{a) Th controlling company

Pq) CO, the controlling company, was incorporated on April 1, 1968, under the Commercial Code
of the Republic of Korea to manufacture and sell stea! rolled products and plates in the domestic

rnationally through ten of its overseas liaison offices.

As of December 31, 2011, POSCO’s sharcholders are as follows:

| Share holder's name Number of shares Owners hip (%)
Na tional Pension Service 5,937,323 6.81%
Nippon Steel Corporation (*1) 4,394,712 5.04%
Slr Telecom Co., Ltd. 2,481,310 2.85%
Pohang University of Science and Technology 1,905,000 2.18%
SltlEmn Financial Group Inc. (*2) 1,870,879 2.15%
Others 70,597,611 80.97%

? 87,186,835 100.00%

(*#] Nippon Steel Corporation has American Depository Receipts (ADRs), each of which represents
'|0.25 share of POSCQ’s common share which has par value of W 5,000 per share.

(*2) Includes number of shares subsidiaries hold at the end of the reporting period under
| | commercial law.

A§ of December 31, 2011, the shares of POSCQO are listed on the Korea Exchange, while its
depository receipts are listed on the New York, Tokyo and London Stock Exchanges.




POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

PLOUIC

{b) domolidated subsidiaries

Details of consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Immm‘h]
POSCO E&C Co.. Lid
POSCO P&S Co., Lud,

POSCO Coated & Color Steel Co, Ll

POSCO Pl Engineering Co., Lid
|
POSCO JT Co.. Lid.

POECO h Instiule
Sooung Juang Co., Led.
POSCO Afci &

[& Co., Lid
POSCO inky Steel Co., Eid.

POSCO Chenned Campany Lid
{ POSCO Refracic
Envh Ca., Lid)

POSCO Co. L

POSCO MFTECH Co., Lud (*1)

POSCO Co, L,

I‘Hmh; Engegy Fnl-tu!('Zl
PHP Co, LM

POSCO * C Co,. Lid

PNR Co,

BMegansn

POSCO Comgany
{fermticily Dnewoo Engincering
Cormpey

Pohang Feg)Cel Co. Lud.

Pahang Co., Lid

POSWITH Co., Led.

POSFINE Ca., Ltd
POS ECD HOUSING Co,, Lad.
Mapo high broed parking Co., Lid.
Dakos Co..|Lid,
SPFC Co., Lo
POSCALCIUM Company, Lid
ying sarvies

Co, Lid
Ld

fiy Stage Fund (*1)
Co., Lid
iy Stroteggy Punda
PO fo., Lid
Songdo SE Co., Ld
PorgreenCp., Lid,
Doewoo k
POSCOLED Co, Lid
Guan SPIC Co.. Eod
FOSCO Ca, Lol
Pohang Scxpp Reayuling

Center T, Lid

PSC global Ca,, L1t
Suncheon Beotrans Co., LY.
Shinan Encrgy Co., Lid
Reco Mek]Co. . Lud
NewAhey Co., Ltd

-
&
z
=

oo

1 Corporatt

PONUTeH Co., 154,

BLUE Of1 Co, L4

Engincering and constructicn
Steel sales and service
Coated stoel manuihenaing

Steel work maimenance

ond machinery instalaiion
Computat hardware

and software dswiaiion

e N b and hing
Athlode feiliis opesation

Arthitectare and consulting
Stee] mosufacharing and aales
Investmant In vanturs companies
Elecironic commernce

Manufacturing and sales.
Trargponing and warchousing
Packirg maloviel maufaciuring
Geraration of skelriity
Invesiment in now techinologics
Ransat Iouses construcrion

and managemet

Componen| manufaceuring

Steel mumfaciuring and soles
Real eatats remal dnd nales

Constructian and enginecring service
Generalian of eleciriciy

Stwcl manufiaciring

Tndustrbl elearing service

Pane! board, ekociric and
control pangl manufactueing

Big diese] ndustrics.

Video pame mamuthenuing

Stesl manulaoturing and sakes

Cold- roling of s1ainless etoel ,
nickel alloy

Steol manufaciuring and salkey
Handling & disposal of wiste maver
Bdusation services

Non metale tineral manufaciuring
Carataction

Coratnxtion

Ralway squiprment manufucturing
Sicel mamafachuring

Non metalic mbersls manufasuring

Engineering service
Seecl manufactucing
Fauncial imvestment
Handling & dispesal of wasie mafter
Fipncial imvostment

Train mamufacturing & mangement
Manufacturing £ management
Steel manufacturing
A ko "

o

and saks

Nuclear power gencation design
and repair service

Service

XA
5.3
%8
§00.0¢
254
106.00
.38

10¢.00
100.00

nie
50.00
51.00
48,85

100,00
10.53

N
70.00

100.00
500

“an
8.2

000
100.00
100.00
66.56
16.70
100.00

11

60.00

63.31
009

5000
100.00
100.00
100.00
LR

Gria

100.00
10000

Owneryhig (%)

December 31. 2010

Shisigisries  Tow

53.53
M
47

100.00

nH
100,00
100,00

100,00
100.00
9500
6239

60.00
5100
4888
100.00
il

POSCO

8.5
.31
3687

100.00

T

11.58

100,00
836

100.00

.00
100.00
10.00
.07

60,00

8.3
100.00

5100

9,53
9131

%597
100.00
nu“
100.00
100.00

100.00

61.96

100,00
5100

- Subsidiarigr _ Towl — _ Reglon

Pohang
Sooul
Pokang.
Pohang
Seoul
Sunchean
Scou
Changwon
Pohang
Seou
Polang
Palang
Seou

Inchesn




POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

iy

(Foreigm

Corer |(Chrpansil
POSCO BEC Viemom Co., Lid
Zlu»ﬁhmmmng
Stakiess Siee]l Co, Lid
Guangdong| Pohong Coaled
Stee) Coj Lid
POSCO {Thailknd) Company Lid
r POSCO Sivel Co,. Lid
POSCOJOPC Co., Lad.
POSCO Co., Lul.
POSCOMXIC SDN BHD.
Qingeae Py Stainkss
Steel O
POSCO |§) Ausomotive
Proce Cenier Co, Lid
POSCO BVentores L.
PT. POS
POSCO ERC - Tawsi Ine.
POS-Qirpdso Coll Center Ca., Lid
POS-Orq Fty. Lid
POSCOLChine Holling Corp,
POSCOapan Co., Lid
POS-CD Pry. Lad
POS-GC Py L
POSCOS Prhvale Lid
POSCOSnia Pune Steel
Processing Canire Py, Lid,
POS PG Co, Lid
POSCO n Stee! Processing

0.1,
PDSCO ERC (Clinw) Ca., Lid.
POSCO MPC BA. de C.V.

Zh; g Pohang Port Ce., LI
Sice] Myterial Co., L

POSCO-Viemam Co., Ltd

POSCO-Mexico Co., Lid.

POSCO-Indin Dehi Sicel
Proceming Cenre Pyt Ltd.

POSCOPpland Wrockw Steel
Procosgigp Cenier Co, Lid

POS-NF Pry. Lid

POSCO-Vitiem Processing
CenlerQs.. Lud,

POSCO [nongaing) Auomathve
Procussing Cenier Co, Lol

Sushou B ORE

POSCO (Wit Automolive

SANFPU TRADING CO.LTD.
~ BLZ Polung
Isorumbonol Teading Co.. Led
POSCO Madico Humon Tech
POSCO Mexica Eant Sieel
Dl Cerver Co., Ll
POSCO Ghf Liyasies LLC,

Principal Opesaiiony

Stoed trading,

Iron ore saks & swine development
Coalsaie

Cosl 3nkes

Stoe) rarsi trading

Stoe! mamadac ity

Stoe] mannficturing

Stacl manfachwing

Leasing servics
Stoe] manufastomy

Staintess siesl monufacturing

Plating stow] sheet manufacturing
Seeel manufachring

Zinc reBel wanuMeiuring

Steel manufaciuring

Financia) services

Stec manufschring

Stainfess siecl manydcarng

Steel nunulecturing
Bio tech industry
Steel namdstring
Roul axate ndmstry
Steel manufaciuring
Iron ore saks & mine dovelpinenl
A holding company
Seeel ruding
Costinkes
Coalenlex

Seaed inamyfheiuring

Stas] manufacruring.
Steel manufaciucing

Sien) manufactucing

Construction and ivll enginee ring
Sreal nanufacuring

Load snd izvicad industcy

Stoel manvhenaing

Stoc] mamrala ctuing

Mobide sieel shea mamfacmning

Siael mamfaeiving

Srer! mamafieting
Coal sakes

Fieel manufaeiuring
Steel mamalocturing.

Component mamdhcurng
Steel mamafachaing
Stox! mamafiensring
Minc development & saks

Stee! mamafhcturing
Corataxtion and ecyinesring
Carstruction and enginesring

Sicc) nurfhering
Elecirical contxol equipmenm
mamsfacring

Transit trade

Steel transit trading.
Scrvikc

Sreel product saks
Steel prochtl sales

_ Ovnership {%)
December 31, 21 December 31 2010
_JOSCO  Subeifiarcs _ Tpwl  _ POSCO  Swbsidiaries __ Tatal
WS 0.55 100.00 9,48 058 100.00
100,00 . 100,00 100,60 - 100.00
. 100,00 10006 . 150,00 100,00
- 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100,00
100,00 . 100,00 100.00 . 100.00
30.00 00 .00 30.00 5500 85,00
2660 340 100.00 S8.60 4240 100.00
. .00 $5.00 - 95.00 95.00
- .00 e0.00 - 50.00 50.00
- 100,00 106,00 - 100.00 100.00
%8.60 nn 243 LT 2188 8248
8432 1001 4.5} .35 &1 23,46
8842 1138 100.00 85.61 1438 100.00
.00 . 0.00 0.00 . 70.00
. %84 .64 - 504 5.8
10000 . 100.00 100,00 - 10000
“we I3 ] 20.00 e 2.3 70.00
00 000 100.00 70.00 30.00 100.00
%0.00 10.00 100.00 .00 10.00 100.00
. 100.00 100.00 - 106:00 100,00
.00 - 00 20.00 - 000
- 100.00 100,00 - 100:00 100,00
. 160.00 100.00 - 100,00 100.00
. 100,00 100.00 - 100.00 160.00
100.00 . 100,00 100,00 - 100,00
100.00 . 10000 100:00 - 100.00
- 100,08 10000 . 10000 100.00
. 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100.00
100.00 . 100,00 100,00 - 106.00
£5.00 - 65.00 .00 . 5.00
. 0,00 %0.00 . %200 .00
0.0 60.40 100,00 15,60 5040 100.00
. 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100.00
- 000 $0.00 - P0.00 .00
- H0.00 100,00 . 100.00 100.00
- 100.00 100.00 . 100.00 100.00
85.00 - £5.00 85,00 - 25,00
0.8 192 100.00 84.67 1533 100,00
.40 . 7640 76,40 - 16,40
0.00 . 0,00 60,00 - 60,00
- 100.00 100,00 - 100,00 100,00
1] . V.55 3998 - 89.58
100.00 - 100.00 20.00 1000 10000
- 160,00 100.00 . 100,00 100,00
. 07 8237 - [i4H) 8237
80.07 1M 9341 80.07 (.M 9541
. 100,00 100.00 - 100.00 100,00
s EIPe) 100.00 .57 3143 100,00
- 100,00 100.00 - 100.60 100,00
- 10000 100,00 - 100.00 100,00
. 100,00 100,00 . 100,00 100,00
- 000 M00 - .00 .00
. 4 04 - oM 2064
. 100.00 100.00 . 100.00 100.00
80,00 2000 100,00 50,00 .00 100.00
- 5681 %8 - 824 e
. . - - 100.00 100,00
12

Repion
UsA
Avlia
Canada
Canada
HoogKong:

Chia
Jopan

Vietoam
Vietnam

Trailwad
Myanmoar
Jepan

Chine
Muxko
Philippines
China
Chins
Moxico

Mexico
UAE
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POSCO
Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

N Owacrgbip (%)
Deceonber 31, Dnemlur:l,ﬁﬁ

Printipal Qpevations _PDECO  Subsidiarles Tolal POSCD  Subgidinriey Tolat Reglon
IT service and DVR Inminess. . 10000 10000 - 100100 100,00 Chim
Construction: - 9.0 9.00 - 25.00 9.00 Maxico
Sicot manudhenring . 61.00 61,00 - .00 €1.00 Mexico
Lumber mamufactering & sakie %00 - o4.00 9800 - .00 lUngwy
Siecl mamsi trading . 51.00 5100 - 5100 .00 Stgapoce
Sieel product ks 50.00 20.00 000 20.00 20.00 70.00 Skvenk
PRT icat rack construcrion - 99.57 Ly - “0.57 957 Enghnd
Setvice 100.00 - 100,00 100.00 - 0G0 Caymwan filend
Stinless sicel marufhcoring 93,65 - 95,63 9L97 - 92.91 Vienam
Stor) mamauciuring 100,00 - 100.00 100.00 . 100.00 Iy
POSCO|Inda Chermal Steel
P g Contre P, Lid Steet mamdhcnring 100.00 - 100,00 100.00 . 100.00 Jodi
POSCO Tiekay Niksfer
P Cenver Co,, L1l Steol mannlbetutng 190,00 - 100,00 [00.00 . 10000 Thkey
POSCO| Vistnan Ha Noi
P g Cemer Co, Ltd Stew) manuibctring 0.00 - nop .00 - 70.00 Vielnam
POSCQ (Laoning) Automothe
P g Center Co, Lid, Siee) manuficturing .00 10.00 100.00 9%0.00 1000 100,00 China
POSCOIndancsia Jadacta
P Iy Conter Steel eanuiicturing 4500 2000 15,00 65.00 20.00 83.00 Indoncsia
POSCO|ERC Venezoch C.A Comsmuction and ergineering - 100.00 100.90 - 100.00 100,00 Yencach
T, T mine devolopmont 65.00 - 6500 65.00 - 6500 [ndonesia
POSCORE-INDLA Steel manulrenming - 100.00 100.00 . 100.00 100,00 India
POSCO | America Abbama
P dng Conicr Cau, Lk Sioo! munufacnaring - H0.00 100,00 B 100.00 100,00 USA
PT DEC Tndoresia Comatruciian - .00 95.00 - 00 95.00 Indonesia
POSCO [ Yamad Awamotive
i g Cenler Ca, Lad, Stce) manufacturing 90.00 10.00 K0.00 20.00 10.00 100:00 China
PONCO [tndia Breal Digmribwilon
Ceneet Beivane Lid. Stecl lopiatiss - 100.00 100.00 . 100.00 10000 India
POSCO Ching Dolan Plae
Proceasing Center Co,, Lid Steel mamsfacnaing 80.00 10.00 90.00 80.00 10.00 90.00 China
POSCOSouh Agla Co, Lad. Steel praduct eaks 100,00 - 100,00 300,00 . 100,00 Thaiarl
POSCO S§-VINA Co., LTD Seeel mamiheiiring - 00,00 190.00 . 10000 100.00 Vietnam
POSCH Coal Ll Coal sakes . 100.00 100,00 - 100.00 100.00 Camada
POSCO WA Pty. Lud Irom ore Jales & mine develpment 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100,00 Awirats
POSCO BRC - UZ Cancrruetian - 100.00 100,00 - 100.00 100.00 UzbeXstan
POSCO A|aimila GP Limied Resource dovelopmen - 100,00 100,00 . 100,00 100.00 Aulimk
. D I lenal Americo Corp. Trading usiness - 100.00 100.00 - 100,00 100.00 UsA
W D;

(: o 4 Doutsciiand GmbH Trading tusinces - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 Genrany
[>! [ | Japan Corp. Trading business - 100.08 100.00 . 100.00 100,00 Japen
A, " ons

Singapyey Pia. Lud Trading busincss - 100.00 100.00 - 190,00 100.00 Singapove
Da iyl S.r.l Trading business - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 Lok
D (Shondong) Co., Lod.  Cement mamufhcturing . 100,00 10000 - 190,00 100.00 Chima
Daewao Co., Lid Truding business - 10000 1000 - 100.00 100.00 China
FT. RI R Daewpo Apparel Clothing businass - 10000 100,00 - 160,00 100.00 Indonesin
Daewoo Tyxiie Fergana LLC Taxtie manufaciuring - 100.00 100.00 - 10000 100.00 Uzbekiatan
Daewan Textho Bukdhars LLC Textho manufaciurig . 100,00 [Leetd - 100.00 100,00 Uhbekistan
Daewoo [ntermolional Awaalia
Hokiings [P1y. Ly, Regouren devebprmen v 10000 10000 . 100,00 100.00 Awwmalia
Dapwod Paper Manufactoring Co,, Ltd  Poper indugtry - %] 70 . 6870 5470 Chimy
Tonjin g, Paper Co., Ltd Paper indusiry - 63.00 63.00 . 8.00 6400 Chira
POSCO Mpurkim Led. Mive develpmen & saks - 100.00 100.00 . 100,00 100.00 Maurkiug
PT. KRARATAU STREL POSCO Steet manuficturing 70,00 - 000 oo - 70.00 Indonesia
MYANMAR D LTDh. Teading hesinesy - 100.00 100.00 . 100.00 100,00 Mysnmar
Davewel Ipterantional
MEXICO S.A. da OV, Trading besiness - 100.00 160.00 - 100.00 100,00 Mexico
Daewod Injernatianal
Guan Coop. Trading besiness - 100.0 100.00 - 100.00 100.0¢ China ‘
Dacwoo Piergy Ceaiml Ash Resource devebpment . 100.00 100,00 - 100.00 100,00 Uabeldstan |
Daewoo STC & Appare] Vigtnam Lid  Texthe mamafachwing - 100,00 100.00 - 100.00 160.00 Vielram |
MYANMAR Daewoo |
Inteena) Lid, Teuhe manufienuing - 55.00 £5.00 - $5.00 $5.00 Mynnmar |
DAYTEX BLECTRONICS CORP, Trading busiwes - 100.00 100,00 - 100.00 100.00 Comca |
Daswoo {M) SDN. BHO. Trading business . 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 Matysia
Daswog CANADA LTD. ‘Trading business - 100,00 100,00 - £00.00 100.00 Canods
Daewoo BL SALVADOR
SA.DELV, Trading buainess - 52.00 28.00 . 8800 44.00 Bl Sakader
GEZIRA TANNERY COu, LTD. Leathet manuthcturing - 40.00 w@.00 - 60.00 60.00 Sudan

13
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PUSUIS

........... 1%0

|Foreign
POSCO

CO8.
Y SERVICIOS EPCS.A

BCMIS.A.

MI CONSTRUCCIONES

ROL, GENESYS 5.A.
MERIC:\S SA.

rwational Camproon PLC

0., Lid
} ROSCO Loginties Co, Lid.

USA SADC Corpornbn
Duewox byaraional

(*1)

(*2

Ca, Lid

ownership.

others.

Principal Operations FOSCO

Stex) murmifhenaring
“Trading business

Trading business

Bio tech Industry

Power goncratin equipment
swnufacturing

Trading business

Eleotrical Industry

Canumiction

Raw materis] matwfacwring
Trading buainess

Naus-profit chariisble organtzation
Comnxciion

Consvueson
Cotwtrucion

Conseruotion
Camtruction
Construation

Construction
Canctnution
Construetion

Conptruetion

Comtnafon
Construction

Construction

Consirution

Conginue tion
Conarvetion

Comtruction
Construciion

Ekctrical Steel Mamsfaciaring
Resowrce Developinei
Resource Dovelpment

Investmam
Coalsales
Jnvestment

Sued nirafaciuning

Inwesurvent
Min dovelopinent
IT service snd Eleciric Comrol

Eagincering

Stesl manuficiuring
matulbeioring & management
Trading business

Steel manuficiuring

merchaniing mds
Fores! resoutcas Development
Lroo cre saks

Stwel manufacistiog
Laghtics
Scrap aake

Trading busincss

Dwuership (%)

Dacembor 31, 3011

Becember 31, 1010

- 10000
- 100.00

- 100.00

- 100.00
2.8 21.36
- 000

- 997
1000

$00.00

. 000
- To.00

- .90
- 100,00

»9s
- 100.00
- 109.00
90.00
- 999
950

"o
.00

- 9.00
. 90.00
- 51,00
- 95.00
- 100.00
190,00
60.00 .00

- 160.00

. 1000
- 100.00

106,00
100,00
100.00
90:00 10.00
.9 -
100.00
100.0%
nn uz
. 100.00
100.00

14

100.00
100.00

100.00
106.00

NN

10000
w.97

10000
.00
L0000
o000
H00

59.90
100.00

$9.98
nH
160.00
160.00
wne
99.50

99.00
0.00

93,00
9.00
90.00
.00

95.00
100.00

100.00
100,00
.00
100.00
10.00
100,00
%00

100,00
100,00

100.00
100.00

100.00
"

100.00
100,00
/2
10000
100,00

100.00

100,00

100.00
100.00

100:00
100,00

50.94
100,00
.97
100.00

100,00
100,00

s __Tenl __ _FOSCO  Semuincvi. . eml ..Regon

China
Malysh

Chima
USA

Meaico

Meakoo

Bovador

In 2011, this company was included as a subsidiary as the Company has the power over more
than half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement with Postech, which has 4.72% of
These subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements as the controlling
company has control over them in consideration of the board of directors’ composition and



POSCO
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(v (o) Svaaﬂzed financial information of subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
1} |December 31, 2011

(i willions of Won)

| Company Asscts Liabilitles Equity Sales Net income (loss)
tic]
E&C Co., Ltd. W 6,819,542 4.260,627 2,558,915 6,142,026 109,921
P&S Co., Lid. 1,017,070 472,175 544,805 3,141,999 19,24
Coated & Color Sieel Co,, Lid. 52147 297,947 23,54 956,179 (24,713)
Plant Enginsering Co., Lid. 208,084 117,629 90,455 597,308 6,758
ICT Co., Lud. 687,657 446,640 41,017 983649 30,578
Research Instituie 29,320 6,304 23016 30,844 214
Gwang Co,, Ltd, 826N 3,868 47303 14,652 2522
hrehitects & Consuhanis Co,, Lid, 93,268 40,458 52,810 196,754 7,236
Specialty Stect Co,, LAd. 1,582,832 691,581 891,251 1,662,896 127,573
CH Venture Capital Corp. M2 1,094 33,128 - 1,041
} Co., Lid, 99,382 69,607 29,775 634,830 1,249
hemtes Compony Lad,
ly, POSCO Refractories &
aimeat Co, Lid) 4793615 152416 327,192 1,186,623 92,39
Terminal Co., Lid. 95,806 15,145 81,661 100,710 22,955
M-TECH Ca., Lud. 316953 153,876 163477 602,155 12447
ENERGY Co., Lid.
armerly, POSCO Power Corp.) 2,891 382 2327308 562984 1,863,67) 15,182
Postech| 2006 Energy Fund 21662 1,042 20620 - (202)
, Lid 66461 58,521 7,940 4456 ' 483
TMC Co., Lid. 204,738 113,595 91,143 219,530 5,746
L, Lid 159076 129,198 29878 74013 13,366
("‘. Mapgadsset Co., Ltd. 23757 9,354 14,403 63,567 5,794
b
o7 300 Enginearing Company
rly Dacwoo Engincering
oy 508,290 341,546 166,344 980,340 3225
Pohang Feul Cell Co. Lid. 12,061 8,3, 1469 2,235 {286)
Pohang SPFC Co., Ltd. 10,02 4,221 5,800 38,117 L1710
POSWITH Co., Lid. 5,129 1460 2,669 13,745 151
BASYS|INDUSTRY Co., Lid. 067 266 01 2,500 369
POSTECH BD Newunderiaking fund % . 9 - 1)
POSBRO Co., Lid. 126 - 126 - (54)
POSCO|AST Co., Lid. 316,695 163,548 153,147 365,682 4,972
DaiMyung TMS Co., L.td. 18,350 52497 (24,447 6,265 {3,69%)
POS-HIMETAL Cao., Lid. 309,368 268,788 40,581 34,682 {28,857)
POSCO(E&E Ca., Ltd, 22435 127 22,308 - 508
POMIC|Co., Lid. 4411 243 1,980 2,11 n7
POSFINE Co,, Ltd, 62,775 48,146 14,629 2,285 (1,347}
POS EQO HOUSING Co., Ltd. 8,1%0 1,846 6,344 13,629 265
Mapo high troad parking Co., Ltd. 1,676 110 1,566 . (335)
Dakos Co,, Ltd. 783 3 462 ns (58)
Kwang Yang SPFC Co., L1d, 63279 32,806 15473 4,686 (2,156)
POSC UM Company, Ltd. 8,403 7,004 1,399 108 (1,353)
Plant £nginearing service
Technojopy Co., Lid. 2327 500 1827 6,259 354
9Digh Co., Lid. 33,820 27,091 6,729 58,341 (308)
Postech Early Stage Fund 10,034 &5 9,969 - 3n
Busan E&E Co., Lid 4,731 1,687 43,044 - 127
Famfly Strategy Funds 57678 25 57428 - 20
A Co., Lid. 15,131 12,880 2251 20,788 1,158
Songda SE Co., Lid, 1,652 282 1,370 2,761 n
Posgmf Co., Ltd. 8,225 4,280 3945 2944 {33)
International Corpocation 7,323,738 6,302,994 1,520,744 18,758,511 160,088
- POSCOLED Co., Ltd. 28,717 5917 22,300 4,063 (5,355)
(\...J! Gunsan $PFC Co., Lid 51,483 30,673 20,810 53,797 (236)
POSCO NST Co., Lud. 158470 121,493 38977 202,334 (803)
Pohang Serap Recycling

e, Lid, 17,842 2,863 14979 1,748 143
| 15




POSCO
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

@in miilligns of Wen)

Company Asscis Liabilldes Equtty Sales Net income {loss)
[Domestic]
PSC endrgy global Co., Lid. w 38,780 - 38,780 - (1,59%)
Sunc! Exotrans Co., Lid 25,526 2,878 22,648 - 48
Shinan| Energy Co., Ltd. 34N - 8494 - {(56)
Reco Metal Co,, Ltd. 15043 13,280 1763 6,261 (2,658)
NewAlige Co., Lid. 114,744 1797 91573 92,849 638
PON h Ca,, Lid. 9919 182 9,737 - (263)
BLUE| Q&M Co., Lid 988 - 988 - {12)
[Forei
POSCO| America Corporation 416078 23968 192,110 419258 8,866
POSCO) Australia Pty. Ltd. 1,161,366 462,383 698,983 136,144 283,875
POSCO{Canada Lid. 565,424 82867 482,557 304274 133,660
POSCO|Ash Co., Lid. 540,585 504,059 36,626 2,968,097 6,523
Dalian|BOSCO Stec! Co,, Lid 49,104 58,254 (9,150) 90,990 (8,711)
PO FCTPC Co., Lid 84,966 52,546 32420 134930 1,320
POSCOHKPC Co., Ltd. 93,668 75512 18,156 87203 1,408
Tniematignal Business
Center Compomtion 90,577 51,83 38,46 25289 11,635
POSCO E&C Vietnam Co,, Ltd. 77583 711,679 (96) 114,350 6670
Zhangjinpang Pohang Stanlkas
Steel (Cp., Lad. 1,569,551 986,798 582,753 2,808,722 4444
Lol Pohang Coated
Stoel ¢, Lid. 394,452 163,785 230,667 275,521 (7.349)
POSCO (Thadand) Comperny Lid. 140260 98,044 42216 231,144 1,227
ar POSCO Steel Co., Lid 27519 9,580 17,939 30,967 5885
JOPC Co., Lid. 80,896 76,118 4,718 92,296 768
Investment Co., Lid. 787,069 688,482 98,587 10,792 10,509
POSCORMKPC SDN BHD, 155,789 116,928 48,861 177,822 1,763 ( |
inpdao Pohang Stainless Steel Co., Lid. 268411 135,877 112,534 615,532 (3,110) _—
f Suzhou) Automotive
Procepting Conter Co., Lid. 308,690 220,468 85222 384,705 11,046
BioVeniures L.B. 16851 - 16,851 - (4,226)
PT. POSNESIA 14,129 20 14,100 - (28)
POSCO E&C - Hawail Inc. 914 503 411 - (304)
ngdao Coil Center Co,, Lid. 56062 40,314 15,748 117470 a5
¢ Pty. Lid. 75312 56,851 8461 250,347 132,737
hisa Holding Corp. 427447 160423 267,024 173,639 3517
O+-Japan Co., Lid. 1,157,755 1,017,990 139,765 1,686,385 13,518
POS-CD Pty. Lid. 72,582 68,630 4,552 515 357
POS-G Pry. Lid, 79517 32,397 47,120 10,263 {4,344)
Dtindia Private Lid, 147,259 421 146,938 - {1,034)
ndin Punc Steel
Pracepding Centre Pvt. Lid. 168,309 145,655 2654 211417 (16,626)
JNPC Co., Litd. 192,177 176,268 15,909 207654 6
Foshan Steel Procossing
or Co.,Lid. 178488 135213 43,275 529,788 77
POSCO E&C (China) Co,, Ltd. 120,135 83,361 Er AL 104,055 1,898
POSCOIMPC S.A. de C.V. 192,538 182,180 10,358 316046 {6,587)
Zhangfigang Pohang Porl Co., Lud. 26801 11,327 15474 6,244 m
Gingddo Pujin Steel Materia] Co., Ltd 14208 11,997 2212 79732 13
Vietnam Co., Ltd. 659,931 576,657 83,274 962,490 (46,976)
Mexico Co., Ltd. 488,782 432,155 66,627 306,897 (43,258)
dio Delhi Sioe]
Pm:e sing Centre Pvt, Lid 85,340 75,582 9767 129434 (9.824)
FOECO-Poland Wiroclaw Steel
ing Center Co., Ltd 62,709 49,981 12,728 71,871 (1,483)
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Notags to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
1he years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

i millions of Won)
( Compuny Assets Linbilitlcs Equlty Sales Net itcome {loss)
P Pry. Lid. w 57,890 15,003 42 887 48,404 9,480
mem Processig
‘0., Lid. 71,203 50417 20,786 159,369 %6
hongqing) Automative
ing Center Co, Lid, 69253 59468 9,785 62,795 (1,622
0S-CORE
okogy Co., Lid. 0,082 33,980 26,102 96,008 781
0-JYPC Ca, Lid. 67,587 64,165 3an 102,700 781
POSOQ-Mahysin SDN. BHD. 88,635 112,586 (23,831) 140,709 (4,114)
inerals Corporation 113,694 - 113,694 . (808)
OSCQ (Winhu) Aulomotive
ss$ing Centor Co., Ltd. 69,613 45,756 23,847 92,554 613
POSCC E&C India Private Ltd. 35982 31,304 4,678 4966 1,135
POSCO) E&C SMART 4,670 4,03 638 4421 135
FOSCO-Phillippine Manila
Proccsging Center ke, 27412 (7492 9520 45,680 266
Dalinn POSCON Doagbang
Autamatic Co,, Ltd. 8,083 2,99 5087 5,104 k7]
SANPU TRADING CO.LTD. 1,842 5 1,837 73 3
Zhangiagmng BLZ Pohang
Intermapionat Trding Co., Lid, 15,720 10,881 4839 100,833 116
POSCY Mexico Human Tech. 787 48] 306 5378 221
POSCG Mexico Eost Steol
Distribstion Conter Co., Ltd 13,188 1,353 11,833 5638 110
POSCO ICT-Cliina 1,737 1,294 443 4,920 1t4
DWEMEX S.A.DEC.Y. 226 62 164 2 (29)
POS MPC Serviclos de C.V. 667 458 209 4902 90
- EUR ALY S.A. 16,733 127 16,606 24 (898}
C'_“_ﬁ POSCO South East Asia Ple. Lid §232 2,613 2,599 62235 256
Europg Siccl Distribution Center 6,775 991 5,784 13354 n
VECTUS Ltd. 3,086 5,126 {2,060} 3,560 {1,530)
D VST Co., Ltd 336,484 268,005 88479 264,516 (10,669)
O Maharoshira Steel Pwi. Lid. 32434 149,442 12299 44 2036
POSCOr India Chennai Steel
sging Centre Put, Lad. 89,782 80,514 9268 134,409 (3,232)
POSCO Turksy Nilafor
$dling Ceater Co,, Lid, 49,588 40,578 9010 38,729 (3.971)
POSCO Vistnom Ha Noi
Proceyding CenterCa., Ltd, 47931 40,300 7431 55239 902
POSCO (Liboning) Automolivo
Py log CenterCo., L1d, 84,315 61,13 13,184 117,395 3,267
62,550 55,069 7481 64,597 216
138 - 1238 - -
12,251 17626 {5375) 458 (3,854)
10917 8446 247 13,186 (48)
63014 50,007 13,007 85,381 (858)
4577 4,752 (L175) 13,962 (267)
40,586 24355 16,231 32,30t 172
5324 2204 3,020 786 (427)
106,525 65,888 40,637 66,113 {165)
13,703 199 13,504 3,015 1,039
74438 409 4,029 - (1,122)
212,984 9 212918 . (33,042)
2279 1,739 490 2,046 104
e ) Ausiratia GP Limited 97,196 s 97,191 - (8)
h\ o International America Corp, 283,653 241,259 42,304 984,378 5372
Daewoo Intemationa)
Deutschfand GrbH 115,256 105,288 9,968 482,585 314
17
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Notjs to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

tin nillions of Won)

Company Assers Linbilities Equlty Sales Net income (loss)
[Foreign]
Daewpo International Japan Corp. w 243086 236,533 8,553 804,864 981
Daewpp [niernational Smgapore Pte, Lid. 43,647 38,982 4,665 902,313 481
Di Itala Sr.l 61,859 60,247 3612 361,821 145
Di Cemenl (Shandong) Co., Lid. 221,807 251,000 (69,193 133,502 20,361
Daowop (China) Co., Lid. 150079 101,449 48,630 54,521 726
PT. RISMAR Dacwoo Apparel 17,167 18417 (6500 58,182 1,246
Daewpd Texiile Fergana LLC 64437 65,968 {1,531) 132,866 {11,994)
Daewood Texlile Bukhzra LLC 51939 49,630 2309 51,312 {11,500}
Dacwo ueemtionnt Australia
Holdings Piy. Lid. 151,462 12,964 138498 1,935 159
Do Paper Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 76858 72,385 4470 76,632 (5,210}

Tis 00, Paper Co,, Lid 14,589 33,029 (18,440) -
POSCO Mauriius Lid 24,648 2839 21,809 - ()
PT. KRAKATAU STEEL POSCO 8198% 4918 714,58) - (2,385)
MYANMAR Daewoo LTD. 6030 41 5989 1373 152
Dewwog| In jonal MEXICO S.A. de C.V. 68,030 64,189 3841 240,448 200
Dacwix International Guangzhou Corp. 7,666 7473 193 61,554 (1,265)
Daewps Energy Central Asia 15,571 322 15249 R .
Daewbg STC & Apparcl Vietnam Ltd, 3848 1313 2,535 9435 54

AR Daewoo Internationa) Lid. 7,651 2240 541l 11,947 759

(Zhangjiagang) Siwinkss
SteatlPloceaving Conter Co. Ld. 63,505 51,088 12417 6,175 15
ntemational Corporation (M) 8831 6469 2362 21,190 17
b International SHANGHAI CO., LTD. 63,594 52,656 11,038 91,541 1286
3,038 ] 3137 . 290
a4 Inc. 11,804 240 11,564 2494 (3,865) ¢
, International INDIA Private Ltd. 3285 1277 2,008 3343 P :
{EN Solar, LLC 5184 . 5,184 - (506)
PT. POSCO E&C Indonesa 37,495 34,094 3,401 46,565 2114
doal Pty. Lid. 242316 2499 21817 . ey
POSCO Foundation 213 3 210 - 3
BQUITIES LLP 1,391 11,283 108 438 @2743)
3 CMI Constrution Tading LLP 13851 13,742 109 2750 (1,323)
S CMI INC. USA 3418 22260 1,158 11,604 (159
OS CM] ENCGENHARIA B
ONPIRUCORS LTDA 18771 9381 939 14823 7484
SANTGS CMI PERU S.A. 26074 20,500 5574 59,091 a7
SANTUS CMI COSTA RICA S.A. 11,856 11,480 376 1,228 (1,754)
‘M1 CONSTRUCCIONES 8.A. 12 3 ™ _ ©
H Internationa! INC. 1,595 1,166 428 1800 728
NVESTMENTS C.V. s 18 97 . ©)
A Y CONSTRUCCION
o "s 2 13 . @)
ASESCRJA Y SERVICIOS EPCS.A CHILE 4568 28% 183 633 88
0S CM1S.A. 42,766 30,495 12271 UITY (5.4%0)
S Chhe o ONSTRUCCIONES 8430 2669 5761 13009 1,703 |
S&K -SANTOS CM! S.A. DEC.V. (MEXICO) 125 14 I 203 (208) |
COMPANIA DE AUTOMATIZACION & 10982 8,392 2,500 14,588 Py

18
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POSCO
Notis to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
Forthe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(in mi(ﬂous of Won)
Company Assets Lisbilitics Equlty Sales Net income (loys)
[Foreiga]
VAUTIDAMERICAS S.A. ¥ 23 1,620 754 1,765 141
SANTOS CM] Constructions Argenthia S.A, 82 46 3 - 1
POSCO E&C Braxil L. 37,817 87,284 533 6300 (465}
POSC trical Stoel Inkta Privato Limited 26448 138 26310 - 345
D Inicrmztionat Cameroon PLC 1,233 - 1,233 - .
POSCO ASSAN TST STEEL Industry 59415 1,897 52,518 - 1,724
HONGKONG POSCO ERC
(CHINA) Invostment Co., Lid. 17,127 174814 (3.:687) . (3,966)
DAESAN (Cambodia) Co., Lid. 30,145 35652 (5,507 - {546)
Brazil Sop Paulo Stee] Pracessing
Co., Ltd 26,987 - 26,987 - .
Dalan) IT Center
ment Co., L4d., 152,725 1271 151,454 - (1,464)
CO Resources Indonesia 4,048 o2 3556 - (415)
0 ICT Indonesia 3430 2,661 819 - (30)
CO M-Tech Indonesia 2865 149 1716 33209 &1
KATAU POSCOPOWER 45,041 42874 2,167 - (134}
RUSLLC. 3,639 ] kYot - (273}
Thainox Ca., Litd. 500214 164464 335,750 401257 {22.466)
ntentational Shanghai
qao Co., Lid, 13,804 13,256 548 22354 343
. Bio|Inti Agrindo 18,900 9714 5,186 - (1,486)
POSCO E&C Australa Ply Lid, 381 624 (243) - (237
LoD ellin) Processing (2,587 12 12,575 . a31)
Hunchun POSCO Logistics Co., Lid. 23725 7 23718 - {229)
- USA C Corporaion k3| - n - -
( ;- Doewod Inkernational Vietnam Co., Lid, 4613 - 4,613 - .
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Not to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
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) December 31, 2010

(in slflions of Won)

Company Assots Liabilitics Equity Sales Net income {loss)
K]
F&C Co., Lud. w 5,374,501 2890916 2,483,685 5,248,379 174,483
P&S Co, Lid 954,120 425,125 528,505 2,062,495 4311
Coated & Color Sizel Co, Lid, 306,115 250,341 249,774 1,001,774 6,409
Plam Engineering Co., Ltd, 192,073 104,657 87,416 433,529 11,986
ICT Ce., Ld. 650,854 439,011 211,853 839,802 17,929
Research Institme 27,108 4,548 23,160 23207 319
Gwang Co., Ltd. 7939 34281 45,613 15,557 2,601
POSCQ Archilecis &
Consi¥ants Co,, Lid. 88,792 41,247 47,545 128,118 4431
POSCQ Speciaky Steel Co,, Lid. 1,307,535 536934 710,601 1,543,122 101,901
POSTECH Venture Capilal Corp. 33,170 L17) 312,293 - poL]
eNwhB Co., Lid. 66,039 36,728 2931t 603,684 2,516
POSCO (hemiec Company Lid.
formery, POSCO Refnctories &
paent Co., Lid.) 31,160 (28254 242,906 756,083 57,19
POSCY] Terminal Co,, Lid. 68,503 8,404 60,000 TBATR 14,475
POSCO ENERGY Co., Lid,
ly, POSCO Power Carp.) 2459195 1,908,801 550,394 827534 {35.641)
Postegh 2006 Energy Fund 26,869 24 26,545 - (964)
PHP Cg., L. 66,001 58,545 T456 2001 {583)
POSCO TMC Co,, Lid. 139908 54,785 85,123 189686 6,838
PNR Co., Lid. 167,789 151,229 16,560 27281 (17,813
Megaassot Co., Lid. §7875 358,958 8917 100,865 4,559
POSCQ Bnpineering Company -
eily Dacwoo Enpincering [
Congiaqiy} 434,122 276,845 157217 774,251 45,099 e
Pohang Feul Cell Co. Ltd. 13091 9337 3,754 4049 (276)
Pahang SPFC Co., Ltd. 13471 8732 4,739 28933 ()
POS Co., Ltd. 4,248 1,731 2517 12317 442
BASYS INDUSTRY Ca., Lid. 825 il 514 990 T
POSTECH BD Newundertaking fimd o0 - %0 - ()]
POSB 0 Co, Ltd 181 - 181 - (78)
POSC AST Co,, L. 238881 134,526 104,355 330425 7,285
DaM; * g TMS Co., Lid. 22,663 43,097 (20,434) 15,985 (3.059)
POS-HIMETAL Co., Ltd. 86293 43,532 42,759 - (5,771)
POSCH ELZE Ca., Lid. 17,777 6% 17,708 - 403
POMILC|Co., Ltd. 3,388 2,126 1,762 19922 403
POSFINE Co., Lid. 31,541 13,092 18448 . (883)
POS EQO HOUSING Co., Ltd, 6,976 897 6,079 2231 {138)
Mapo brond parking Co,, Lid 1,690 4 1,686 - {237)
Dakos|Co., Lid. 3102 2,582 520 4314 274
Kwang Yang SPFC Co,, Ltd. 10065 13 10,052 - 2
POSCALCIUM Company, Lid. 8,526 5,755 2,771 - (226}
Phnt Eagineering sorvice
sology Co., Ld. 1912 440 1,472 3,063 472
Paoslech|Early Stage Fund 10,000 - 10,000 - -
Busan E&E Co., Ltd. 14,193 638 13,555 - (140}
POSCO Family Stralegy Funds 28538 - 28,538 - {62)
POREKA Co., Lid 3,784 2,684 1,100 6274 100
Songdo SE Co., Ltd. 1,738 465 1293 1021 4]
Posgrezn Co., Lid. 3978 - 3978 - (e}
Daewao ittermaiional Corporation 6,249,151 4,921,296 1,327.855 4094039 94,359
POSCOLED Co., Ltd. 28591 638 27953 138 (1,763)
Gunsan $PFC Co,, Lid 30040 15,308 14,731 9 (196)
POSCONST Co., Lid. 94,757 51002 37,755 33,164 35 .
Pohang Stap Recycling {
Center Co,, Ltd. 14,841 - 14,841 - (80) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements, Continued
For?h e years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

( .F:“; {in mifllons of Wou)

LI

Company Asscis ___Liabilitles Equity Sales Net income (loss)
[Foreig
POS cg America Corperation W 297,181 139,360 157,821 288,907 9,039
POSCO Australin Pty. Lid. 1,226,058 619,031 607,027 106,387 50,288
POSCQ Canadn Lid. 424,571 65,508 358,963 170421 65,299
POSCQ Asta Co., Lid 510,844 481,379 29465 2335842 1,376
Dalian POSCO Steel Co, Lid 155,703 155,589 114 68,149 (4,932)
POSCQ-CTPC Co., Lud. 77281 47,763 29,518 149810 2,398
-JKPC Co., Ltd. 86911 70,353 16,558 75831 23
Internptionn! Business Center Corporation 95860 56,084 39,7712 28,354 13,884
POSCOQ E&C Vieinam Co,, Lid. 53600 7,731 (19.131) 72865 3,753
Zhnngjisgang Pobang Stainless
Steel| Go., Ltd. 1,384,622 838,301 346,32) 2461020 44,034
Guangdang Pohang Coared Sioel Co., Lid. 183036 79330 103,706 251416 25,547
POSCO (Thailand) Company Lid. 163,287 118,332 44,955 224,630 10,117
Mysnmgr POSCO Sieel Co., Ltd 21,556 10,245 11,311 24321 3481
PO! -JOPC Co., Lid. 71,955 68,233 172 76,947 765
PO Investment Co., Ltd. 674018 587339 86,679 - 4451
-MKFC SDN BHD. 116,837 6,179 47,658 135,852 3,398
0 Pobang Stainkess Steel Co., Ltd. 233,241 124,372 108,868 542446 5,047
Suzhou) Automotiva
vcec3ing Center Co., 1td, 219427 149,199 70,228 352,367 13,688
( BioVeniures L.P, 20,553 72 20,481 . (10,536)
PT. POSNESIA 13900 21 13,879 - (14)
[} E&C » Hawaii Inc. 1234 509 725 - (1%%)
gdao Coll Center Co., Lid. 0,395 45,576 14819 149,553 1,089
re Pty. Lid. 104,226 13717 91,508 118587 55491
POSCO-China Holding Corp, 288,754 35571 233,183 148,503 459
POSCO-Japan Co., Lid 793,265 675,363 117,902 1,450,633 9,850
=y POS-CD Py, Lid. 69439 65494 3,948 15214 (,771)
(_ P Piy. Lid. 34274 8,636 25,588 12475 654
POSC Indio Private Ltd, 92,865 181 92,684 - (21,612)
POSCCHIndin Pune Steot Processing
Centre Pri., Lid. 176,716 132,501 4215 206,138 87681
POSCORINPC Co., Lid, 153,189 38,864 14,125 179031 24%9
POS ‘oshan Steel Processing
Center Co.,{ad. 129474 88,799 40,675 518,268 6229
PQSCO| E&C (China) Co., Lid. 80,201 57311 22890 117,558 889
POSCOMPC 8.A. de C.V. 178,641 160,581 18090 240277 (2,161
Zhangjigang Pohang Porl Co., Lid, 26,905 12,502 14,403 5200 (789)
Qingdaal Pujin Steel Material Co., Lid 7,002 5019 2073 73408 114
POSCO-Vietnam Co,, Lid, 745465 619297 126,168 813,637 (64,111)
POSCOrMexico Co., Ltd. 425,200 6,865 78,335 302,595 (24,004)
POSCOIndin Dethi Sicel
¢ %i:u Centre Pwi, Lid 02 70,813 25899 113,056 3,919
PO land Wroslaw Steel
ing Center Co., [4d 49,691 33,788 15,903 53941 1929
POS-NE Pty. Lid 57987 13771 44216 44,773 5282
POSCO;Vieinom Processing Center Co., Lid. 58,283 36,039 22244 85,698 4419
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POSCO

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements, Continued

For ;e years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(in mitlions of Won) .‘ ‘_i
Company Assots Liabilitics Equity Sales Net income (loss}

R W 3480 62,378 1,102 84,385 4

ORE Technology Co., Lid. 56,718 32,833 23885 89,248 1,559

Q-JYPC Co., Lid 35319 53,396 1,923 4,565 {1017
Q-Malkysia SON. BHD. 78027 98,183 (20,156) 125,200 (6,022)
rols Corporation 113,105 - 113,105 - (1,i88)
uliu) Antomotive P "
ing Center Co.. Lid 50,592 28,674 21918 124,687 2872
E&C Indls Private Ltd. 2612 677 1,935 463 {1,508)
E&C SMART 532 - 532 - (203)
Phillippine Manla
ing Conter lac 25448 15,828 9,560 37558 1462
DN Dongbang
iie Co., L1d. 7,18t 2,647 4,534 4013 393
TRADING CO.,LTD. 2424 9] 1,233 89 (156)
Zhangfingang BLZ Pohang
Interddkional Trading Co., Lid. 10274 5817 4457 70,923 29
Mexico Human Tech. 522 269 253 4206 166
Mexico East Steel
bhtion Center Co., Lid 13872 2370 11,502 5547 696
POSCO Gulf Logistics LLC. 2 1 m 40 (36)
POSCQ ICT-China 1,787 1,476 in 3884 2%
E SADEC.V. 30 171 195 2084 45
PC Servicios de C.V. 47 545 202 4,837 115
YTALY S.A. 4,628 107 4521 k4 (B46)
POSCQ South East Asla Pte. Lid. 1816 4] 1,775 34,196 121
Eurcpe Siccl Disiribution Center 6,863 1217 L.646 11,789 513
S Ltd. 1,255 1,721 (466) 1,886 {2,352) .
VST Co,, Lud, 195,191 131,450 63,74) 210,656 (8,333) {"
POSQC Moharashira Steel Pwvi, Lid, 1539541 79,556 80,085 - {895)
PFOSCO ndis Cheanal Steel
Procgsging Centre Pyt. Lad. 78,906 64,493 14413 2221 7
POSCO Turkey Nilufor Processing
ContdrCow, Ltd, 37285 21919 15,366 3032 {2,220)
POSCO Victnam Ha Not
Procdst kg Conter Co., Led, 42885 36,710 &175 1,675 (836)
POSCO (Linoning) Awtomotive
Pracesting Center Co., Lsd. 75443 56,654 18,790 45933 -
POSCQ-Indonesia Jokarta
P ing Center 34,309 27,025 7283 42382 1,023
POSCIQ E&RC Venezuele C.A 137 - 137 - -
PT. MR] 15933 17,380 (1447) 1,738 (931)
POSCORE-INDIA 6,173 3264 2911 2936 {113)
POSCO America Abbann
Procdsting Center Co., L1d. 46,133 32406 13,727 20350 (1,443)
PT DEC Indonesin 1043% 10,245 99 - (208)
POS ‘anisi) Automotive
Procesting Center Calud. 3072 7,904 15,168 - (885)
POS| idla Sical Distedbution
Center Privaic Lid. 38817 130 3757 7 ®n
POSCO China Dalian Plate
Procesqing Center Co., Lid. 55831 17,056 38575 - (3630
POSCO-South Asia Co,, Ltd. 14,009 219 13,090 2954 (479)
POSCO 58-VINA Co., LTD 38,598 {851) 39449 - 166
POSCO WA Py, Lid 225,643 808 224837 - (637)
POSCD E&C -UZ 168 - 168 - 1
POSCO| Australia GP Limited 26 - 26 - 3
Daewod International America Corp. 224042 187,747 36295 (634515 (769}
Dacwod [ntemational Deutschlund GmbH 111,603 101,814 49,789 115421 428
D Intarnationnl Japan Corp. 172,547 185486 7,061 184,725 (638)
Daewod International Singapore Pre. Lid, 86,642 82,435 4,187 239,530 109 .
Daewaq Halia S.r.L 99,538 95,826 3712 96,203 139 [
Daewoa Cement {(Shandong) Co., Ltd. 210,277 296,165 {B5,838) - -
Dacwod (Chim) Co., Lid. 43392 6425 36,967 1417 {874)
PT. RISMAR Daewoo Apparel 15,757 17416 (1,65%) 12,843 (2278)
22
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fin anLms of Wou)

_Company Assets Linbilitie s LEquity Sales
[Foreign)
Dacwop Textle Fergana LLC w 82,983 71,898 11,088 38614
Daewop Textlle Bukhars LLC 64283 49,522 14,761 15,156
Dx tional A 1"

Hokkiags Pry. Ld. 132221 4947 127274 293
Daewiop Paper Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 79,383 67,741 (1,642 2311
Tianjin Daewoo. Paper Co., Ltd 13,789 31217 (17,428) 8,388
POSCO Maueitius Ltd. 2[ 548 - 2),548 -
PT. KRAKXATAU STEEL POSCO 3081 1,021 2070 -
MYANMAR Duewoo LTD. 6242 462 5,780 203
Dawwpg Intemational MEXICOS.A. de C.V. 50298 46,319 3879 50,566
Daewop [nteraational Juangzhou Carp. 10,549 9,004 1,455 4702
Daewop Energy Cenita) Asin 15,686 627 15,059 -
Daewop STC & Apperel Vietnam Lid. 4,087 1454 1603 262
MY ANMAR Dacwoo [nternationa] Lid 6,190 2,020 41% 2233
POSCO (Zhangliagung) Stalnless

Stee] Processing Center Co., Lid, .84l m 1,730 B
Daewaoalintemationnl Corporntion (M)

SDN/BHD 1,138 - 1,138 .
Dacwdol International

SHANDHAI €O, LTD. 6916 - 6916 -
PGSF, LLC 922 | 1921 .
Xenegys [ne, 18,333 2,653 15,680 935
Docwao| Intemational INDIA Private Lid, 2273 - 2273 .
TEC N Solar, LLC 30 - 230 -
PT, POSCO EAC Indonesin 1,216 29 1,187 -
POSCO Foundation 244 2 242 -

23

Net Income (loss)

3486
(887)

139

{18,788)
(36%)
(198)

(17
(18
(30)
2n
35

619
Q84

33)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
r the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

PURLIC

|
(d) DLtails of associates

Details of associates as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

v ke Cuteyory of Business
[
MIDAS [nformation Technology Co. Ltd, Engineering
Maapols Co., Lid. Muliiplex develapment
Sonpdo New City Dovelopment I, Real estato
TOSMATECo- id. Sorvices
TOSCO M{TECH Co., Lid, Pacldng materisls e Mcturing
Call Inteotional Korea Lid, Real estate
SNNC Co.( Ltd. Raw muterialinanufietucng and sk
Chungiu enterprise city devalopment Co., Lad. Real eqtale

Taeglsas Wind Mower Compomtion
KOREASOLARPARK Co., Lid,

BuganGirhae Light Rail Tranais Co,, Lid.
Inck mpo Highway Co., Lid,

Green Jangryong Co. Lid.

Green Tangyeong Bnvira Co., Lnd.
POSPLATE Co., Lid.

Pure Jimpp.Co., Led.

Pehang Yechno Valley AMC Co., Lid.
Sung)in Oeotes Co., Lid.

Kyobo Liff nsarnee Co., 144,
Dongbang Special Sieel Ca,, Lid.
Purc Dasn Co., Lid.

Chuncheon Clesa Water Load CO., Lid
DAERYUN POWER COLTD
O;wonu‘i:EE Co, 114

Sunjin Conghak Brcwrxee Co,, Lid.

vestment Network Private Byuiy Fond (* 1}
hno Villzy FFV Cotporation (*1)

BLR N Private Bquity Fund (*1)
SUNAM Go., Lid. (*1)
Kones Cospomtion (*1)

Wind pawer plant consiniction and transgesent
Sclar power plent construction and managenwnt
Cenesation of alecirdeity

Muliiplen devolopment

Non-resident bulkding lease

Constraction

Real osiate scrvicen
Resl estaie
Trunaporting
Construction
Canntraciion
Construction
Trnsparing
Constructien
Sewcrage Insmtment
Scwermpe trcatment
Scrvices
Congimuction

Cons tructon

;-
Life inpurance
Steel processing and solts
Construction
Senerope Healment
Oas producticn wnd saks
Facility construciion
Domiterics management
Matagotxn
Rozl estate developemem
‘Machinery manuficturing
Manufacturing
Qihersclence rescarch
Ming investment
Real extate duvolopment
Privaie equity Bnanclal
Powet supply tand fictoring
Technkcal aervice

24

Qrmnership(%)
December 31, December 31,

211 2010 Raglon
B46 B4 Seoul
4008 4003 Hwascong
39 990 Seovl
30.00 W00 Seonl

- 4885 Pobang
29 209 Ssowl
@00 49,00 Gwangysny
oAl ] 5.0 Chuogly
000 30.00 Hoengsoong
¥se nxn Youngam
n zn Seosan
1858 1358 Incheon
49.00 4900 Scoul
2.1 a1 Hwaseong
%08 %16 Seoul
0,00 000 Gwangju
e 319 Seoul
5 nsb Hwaseong
40,00 ob Paju
3re4 250 Qopo
20 2500 Gimhae
na 2.0 Anynng
pals 100 Pohang
2040 20010 Tongycung
4895 L Gamngyany
n” 213 Ssoul
»50 ok Pohang
B0 4.1 Ulsan
400 2400 Seoud
B ase2 Pohang
3.8 nn Pohang

- 2655 Chuncbeon

- 20485 Yangiu
2084 nu Yonghe

- prd ] Owangju

- 278 Inje
nn nn Yoogin
%30 By Faju
2025 p. i Paju
157 %57 Scoul
20.00 - Seoul
nss Fohang.
nse Seoul
na Seoul
4167 Oyeangn
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
Qwuership{%)
Deceminr 31, December 31,
Tmves toe Category o/ Brilness 0N 2010 Reglon
|Foreignl
VSC PORQD Sten) Coparntion Stecl wanuiiudng and Sale 000 0.0 Vistnam
KOBRAS( Facliiy loase 50.00 0.0 Brazl
USS-POEC0 Industries Mataral sanuiiuring and sale 000 30.00 usa
Poschrojre Pry. Lid. Raw watwizl magufehubig and sale 200 30.00 Republie of South A fica
BOS - Hyhndsi Steel Manufacturing Indis Private Lad. Sicel processing and sake 250 .50 Indla
POSVIMA (Co., Lid. Plating siedl sheet manufacturing .00 50.00 Wiainam
PT. POSMI Sicel indanesia Sieel processiig and sok R 1] 1669 Indonesis
CAML Repources Piy. Lid. Raw materlal manufaciiciag snd take WM nM Ausiniia
Wichel Mining Conpany SAS Rarw praterial manufaciueing and sole 49,00 49.00 New Caledonia
Laaoni ngyvan Posco Rofiaciories Co., Lid, Manufscturing and zale 500 1500 Chinn
POSK (P u) Procesaing Conter Co, Lid Sieel processing and ssie 2000 @0 China
ANK NEW CITY DEVELOPMENT Highway consicuction and new 10wn development 5000 0.0 Yictnam
Hunan Toingpu Femro Alloy Co., Lid, Raw material manufactusing and sale 4500 40.00 China
Unlted ¥ Pipe, LLC Maicria) ranufociusing and sxke R0 30 usa
Zhongyud FOSCO (Qinhuangdau) Tihplate Indusiciel Ca,, Lid, Plting shest manufcturing 00 00 China
BX STERL FOSCO CoM RoledSheet Co., Lig. Steel proceasing end sale 200 2500 China
POSCOBAMEUNG-Siovakla Processing Center Stec procotsing and sale 30.00 30.00 Shovakia
Earela Mely LIC Farw maverial ranufaciuding ond sala 2000 2000 USA
POSCO $A MSURG Suzhou Steel Processing Center Co,, Lid. Steel procensing and aake 3000 3000 China
FOSCO $aA N S1eat Wire (Nantong) Co.. L1d. Sieel procesing oad sake BHO 00 China
POS-COSFQ LLC Steel precessing and sokc 48 4398 UAE
Yingkou Mosroc Refractories Co., Lid Rafinctory manuficturing. 2500 2500 Ching.
Zhangiyging Pohang Refaciories Co., Lid. Refmclory manufacturing 20.00 50,00 China
Dagwoo Enginesring (THARAND] Co.. Ltd. Developmen| and contract +5.50 4350 Thaland
Sebang $ipel Serop sake 49.00 4500 Jopan
NCR LLE Coalsaly 000 2000 Canedn
AMCI(WA) Pry Lid Iron ora aale & mine development 49,00 1900 Ausinsllio
POSCO ¥qngXhs Rare Esnih Mxtal Co., lad, Enwrgy &: Resource development 3.00 31.00 Ciina
Shonghgi Langteng Daewoo Coporation Trading 49.00 4900 Cliina
Shanghal Waigaogian Free Trade Zone
Lansheng Dacwoo Int') Trading Co.. Lad, Trading 49.00 4900 Chima
Hasfung Power Piy., Lid Electric power sunuficiuring and sale 49.00 49.00 Papua New Culnea
Myannex Koma Tinber Intersiotional 1id. Plating sheer manafaezuring 4500 4500 Myanmar
Ooneml Medicince Company Ltd. Medicine musufbcrutiap and sake 1300 300 Myanmar
. Gas produciion oad saleg 000 2000 Bnglanid
AMSA ("2} Energy & Respuncs dyvelopment 4,00 400 Madagasear
}EDM. BID Eoergy & Resouma dovelopmant 20000 2000 Mohyits
{THA ILAND} CO,, LTD, Tding 49:00 49,00 Thailsad
. ‘Tmding 2000 000 North Koren
Asria Gas Pipelioe Conpany Lad. Pipeline eonstruciion pLl] pL 10} Myannar
L S00 Doewoo LLC Mintsge 3300 3X00 Usbeidainn
TIFANIUM B.V Sieal mnufcluring 50.00 5000 Neil:erland
NP5 Niobdum LLC ("1} Mine dovelpment 50.00 . USA
AMP{*)) Steet ronufbeturing 3500 . India
at Joint Venture Coslsale 2000 - Canada
M(Mong Duong Power Company Lid, Coslsale 30.00 - Victnam
nda Siderungien do Pecrm) Sicel nanufacturing and sake 20.00 - Bradl
[A POS CHOSUN Raf Refmeiory manuficturing and sale 3,00 - Indoneaia
xAulo Co., Lid. Stex| minafactuting snd sak 49.00 - Thailand
Wood Forast ronourcos Davelopmant 30,00 - Ruish
s Beairde Power (*1} Constretion aad angneering servie 20,00 - Indonesia
u Heciric Powar Consiwetion and erigneering service 20,00 - indonesin

These securities are newly established or acquired in 2011,

These securities are accounted for under the equity method of accounting even though the
controlling company’s percentage of ownership is below 20%, because it is able to exercise
significant influence on the investees,
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Not Fto Consolidated Financlal Statements, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

() Cansolidated subsidiaries acquired during the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(in mitlions of Won)

Company Date of Acquisition _ Ownership (%} Reason
PSC eperygy phobat Co., Ltd. 2011 2. 100,00 new ivestinent
Sunck pan Ecotrans Co., Ltd. 2112 100.00 new investmeni
POSCO M-TECH Co., Ltd. 2115, 48.85 delegation of voting rights
SDjit Co., Lid. 2H1. 5. 86.49 delegation of voting rights
Shingn Energy Co., Lud. 201, 4. 100.00 new investmeni
Reco Metal Co., Lid. 2011, 6. 88.60 acquisilion
NewAkee Co., Lid. 21, 7. 60.10 acquisilion
PONUTech Co., Lid. 2011. 8. 100.00 new investment
EPC HQUITIES LLP 2011 2, 70.00 acquisition
SANTQS CMI Construction Trading LLP 2011. 2. 99.90 ucquisition
SANTOS CMI INC, USA 2011 2. 100.00 acquisition
SANTOS CMI ENGENHARIA E CONSTRUCGES LTDA 2011, 2. 99,98 acquisition
SANTOS CMI PERU S.A. 011, 2. 99.99 acquisition
SANTQS CMI COSTA RICA 5.A. 2011. 2. 100,00 acquisilion
SANTOS CMI CONSTRUCCIONES S.A. (URUGUAY) 0112 100.00 acquisiiion
G H Intcroational INC. 2011, 2, 90.00 acquisition
EPC INVESTMENTS C.V. 2011, 2. 99.99 acquisition
INGENIERIA ¥ CONSTRUCCION HOLAND CO S.A. 2011, 2. 99.90 acquisition
ASESDRIA Y SERVICIOS EPC S.A CHILE 2011 2. 95.00 acquisition
SA S CMI S.A. 2081, 2, 70.00 acquisition
SANTQS CMI CONSTRUCCIONES DE CHILE $.A. 2011, 2 95.00 acquistion
S&K :SANTOS CMI 8.A. DE C.V, (MEXICO) 2011. 2. 93.00 acquisition
COMPANIA DE AUTOMATIZACION & CONTROL, GENESYS S.A. 2011. 2, $0.00 acquistion .
VAUTIDAMERICAS 5.A. 20112, 51,00 acquiskion ( ’
SA S CMI Constructions Argenting S.A. 2011 2. 95.00 acquistion
HONG KONG POSCO E&C (CHINA) Investment Co., Lid. 2011, 3. 100.00 new [nvestnen
POSCC ASSAN TST STEEL Industry 2011. 3, 70.00 now investment
PO, .E E&C Brazil Lid. 2011. 5. 100.00 new fvesiaent
POSCC Ekctrical Steel [nida Private Linited 2011. 6. 100.00 new investment
Da [néernationa] Cameroon PLC 2011, 4. 100.00 new investment
POSCO Kilappan Coal Lid. 2011. 7. 100.00 new irvestment
DAESAN {Cambodia) Co., Lid. 2011. 7. 100.00 acquiskion
Brazll Sao Paulo Steel Processing Center Co., Lid 20017 76.00 now inveslment
POSCC(Dakian) IT Center Development Co., Lid. 2011 7. 100.00 new invesiment
PT.POSCO Resources Indoncsio 20117, 99.80 naw investment
PT. POSCO ICT Indonesia 2011. 8, 95.00 new investment
PT. POSCO M-Tech Indoncsin 2011.8. 100.00 new investment
PT. KRAKATAU POSCOPOWER 2011. 8. 90.00 new investment
PO RUS LLC. 2011, 8. 100.00 new investment
POSCQ Thainox Co., Lid. 2011. 9. 94.93 acquiskion
Daewpg Iitemationel Shanghai Waigsoqiao Co., Lid. 0119, 100.00 new investment
PT. Bio{Inti Agrindo 2011. 9. 85.00 acquisition
PO E&C Auwstralis Pty Lid. 2011, 9. $00.00 new investment
PO TISCO (Jilin) Processing Center Co., Lid. 20119, 60,00 Bew invastment
Hunchup POSCO Logistics Co., Lid. 2011, 10 £0.00 new investment
BLUE Q&M Co., Lid 2011, 12, 100.00 new investment
USA SRDC Corparaion 2n1.12 100.00 new invesimenl
Da International Vietnam Co., L1d. 2011, 12, 100.00 new investmani
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Notas to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
For|/the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(f) Cash outflows caused by the acquisitions
|
(:Jn niillions of Won) Amounts
|
msideration transferred W 551,732
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired {114,268)
Total W 437464

27




Not to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

POSCO
For e years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

ement of Compliance

Stu}

The

ent of compliance

nsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Korean International
|a1 Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS™), as prescribed in the Act on External Audits of
Cor rations in the Republic of Korea.

S is effective from the fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2011. The Company has also
presented the comparative information in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with K-
IFRS.

The Company's date of transition to K-IFRS in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1101 “First-time
adoption of K-IFRS”, is January 1, 2010, and the effect of the transition from Korean Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“K-GAAP™) to K-[FRS on the Group’s reported financial position
and financial performance is explained in note 39,

%_nﬁ—m

Basi of measurement

onsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
ing material items in the statement of financial position, as described in the accounting policy

(a) Derivatives instruments are measured at fair value
(b) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are measured at fair value
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value

¢ liability for a cash-settled stock appreciation rights is measured at fair value
fined benefit obligations are measured at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less
fair value of the plan assets

Functional and presentation currency

Thes# consolidated financial statements are presented in Korean won, which is POSCQO’s functional
currdP cy and the currency of the primary economic environment in which POSCO operates.
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Notas to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

estimates and judgements

reparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with K-IFRS requires

tes and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

tes are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

ation about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following

® Note 11 — Investment property

® Note 12 — Property, plant and equipment, net

® Note 13 - Impairment losses of goodwill

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a

material adjustment within the next financial year is included in the following notes:
|
|

¢ Note 17 — Provisions

® Note 18 - Employee Benefits

& Note 25 — Construction Contracts

¢ Note 35 - Commitments and Contingencies




to all periods presented in these financial statements and in preparing the opening K-IFRS statement of
financial position at January 1, 2010 for the purpose of the transition to K-IFRS, unless otherwise
indicated.
Congoudaﬂon policy
(a) S#bsidiaries
|
Al ubsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
pJ) er to govern the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from

activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or

convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity. The
ncial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the

ustments are made to its financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
a-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
up transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Intra-group
ses are recognized as expense if intra-group losses indicate an impairment that requires
ognition in the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are accounted for separately from the parent’s ownership
infterests in a subsidiary. Each component of net profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the parent and non-controlling interest holders, even when the allocation
uces the non-controlling interest balance below zero,

|
(c) Associates

A associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over the
entity’s financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the
mpany holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity.

The investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased
or|decreased to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss and changes in equity of the
associate after the date of acquisition. Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized
ingome and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are climinated in preparing the
cllmsolidated financial statements. Intra-group losses recognized as expense if intra-group losses
iﬁclicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
1 30
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For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

ang events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustiments are made to the Company’s

I
|
If an associate uses accounting policies different from those of the Company for like transactions
c Eolidated financial statements in applying the equity method.

en the Company’s shars of losses exceeds its interest in an equity sccounted investee, the
c x-ying amount of that interest, including any long-term investments, is reduced to nil and the
ognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has an
obligation or has to make payments on behalf of the investee for further losses.

\
Buslrwss combination

\
(2) Br.lsiness combination

4business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a

b

bination involving entities or businesses under common control.

Q

[ry]

h identifiable asset and liability is measured at its acquisition-date fair value except for below:

ases and insurance contracts are required to be classified on the basis of their contractual terms

nd other factors

nly those contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are a present obligation

nd can be measured reliably are recognized

eferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized and measured in accordance with K-IFRS No.

012 “Income Taxes™

mployee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with K-IFRS

0.1019 "Employee Benefits™

demnification assets are recognized and measured on the same basis as the indemnified

iability or asset

eacquired rights are measured in accordance with special provisions

iabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions are measured in

ccordance with K-IFRS No. 1102 “Share-based Payment”

- | Assets held for sale are measured at fair value less costs to sell in accordance with K-IFRS No.
1105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale™

i
As| of the acquisition date, non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured as the non-
cdn trolling interests' proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

T]:Lw consideration fransferred in a business combination shall be measured at fair value, which shall
be calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer,
thi‘liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
ed by the acquirer.
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to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
;e years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

ts include finder's fees; advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other professional or
sulting fees; general administrative costs, including the costs of maintaining an intemal
uisitions department; and costs of registering and issuing debt and equity securities.
uisition-related costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are
ensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. The costs to
e debt or equity securities are recognized in accordance with K-IFRS No./032 “Financial
truments: Presentation” and K-IFRS No.1039 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and

f the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest
the acquiree; less

e net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
ssumed.

part of its transition to K-IFRS, the Company elected to restate only those business
binations which occurred on or after January 1, 2010 in accordance with K-IFRS, In respect
of pequisitions prior to Januvary 1, 2010, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which
resents the amount recorded under previous GAAP, K-GAAP.

|
Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are initially vecorded using the spot exchange rate between the
functipnal currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. At the end of each
reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the e change rate at the date of the original transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date fair vaiue was initially
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates| different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previgus financial statements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When
gains |or losses on non-monetary items are recognized in other comprehensive income, exchange
components of those gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Conversely, (
whenLains or losses on non-monetary items are recognized in profit or loss, exchange comiponents of

those gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

‘ J
Foreign operations

If the presentation currency of the Company is different from a foreign operation's functional currency,
the financial statements of the foreign operation are translated into the presentation currency using the
following methods:

\

The iasscts and liabilities of foreign operations, whose functional currency is not the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy, are translated to presentation currency at exchange rates at the reporting
date/ | The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to functional currency at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

|goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition of that foreign operation is treated
as asgets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Thus they are expressed in the functional currency

a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount in the translation is transferred to profit
as part of the profit or loss on disposal. On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a
operation, the relevant proportion of such cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling
P t. In any other partial disposal of a foreign operation, the relevant proportion is reclassified to
profitior loss.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign
o! ion, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future and
which in substance is considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation, are
recoghized in other comprehensive income in the translation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, investment in
highly liquid securities that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Non-derivative financial assets

The |(Company recognizes and measures non-derivative financial assets by the following four
categaries: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The Company recognizes financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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|

Upon [initial recognition, non-derivative financial assets are meagured at their fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs thatl are directly
attribytable to the asset’s acquisition or issuance.

(a) F#nancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

iancial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
ignated as such upon initial recognition. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are
gnized in profit or loss when incurred.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
sured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

£

i
(b) 1-1 1d-to-maturity financial assets

A{ on-derivative financial asset with a fixed or determinable payment and fixed maturity, for
which the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, is classified as held-
turity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at
rtized cost using the effective interest method.

(c) Loans and receivables

|

ns and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are

iaasured at amortized cost using the effective interest method except for loans and receivables for
Hich the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(d) Abaailable—for—sale financial assets

| ailable-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
evailable-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
turity securities or loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
air value, with changes in fair value, net of any tax effect, recorded in other comprehensive
ome in equity, Securities in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
adtive market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost. When
ancial asset is derecognized or impairment losses are recognized, the cumulative gain or loss

any’s right to receive payment is established.
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(e} ETe -recognition of non-derivative financial assets

Company derecognizes non-derivative financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
s from the financial asset expire, or the Company transfers the rights to receive the contractual

ncial assets, the Company continues to recognize the transferred financial assets and recognizes
ncial liabilities for the consideration received.

etting a financial asset and a financial liability

ancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
solidated statement of financial position only when the Company currently has a legally
orceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is the intention to settle on a net basis
o realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are determined by using
the moving-weighted average method. The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
conditjon. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of finished goods or work in
progress are based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.

WhetL inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as cost of goods
sold in the period in which the related revenue is recognized and the amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the
period| the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
arising from an increase in net realizable value is recognized as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognized as a cost of goods sold in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Investment property

Property held for the purpose of earning rentals is classified as investment property. Investment
property is measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, investment property is carried at depreciated cost less any accumulated impairment

35




POSCO
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements, Continued
For ga years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Propeériy, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and after initial recognition, are carried at
ss accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of property, plant
uipment includes expenditures arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the asset,
sts directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
e of operating in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of the costs of
tling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. In addition, in the
ation of the opening K-IFRS consolidated statement of financial position on the date of
ition to K-IFRS, the Company measures certain machinery and equipment at fair value at the date
sition, which is deemed cost, in accordance with K-IFRS 1101.

pst of replacing a part of an item is recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property,
pland and equipment, if the following recognition criteria are met.

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(b) the cost can be measured reliably.

\
The&arrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized at the time the replacement part is

recognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of the item are recognized in profit or loss as
incarred.

|
Other| than land, the cost of an asset less its residual value are depreciated. Land is not depreciated,
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis,
which most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodlied in the asset, over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant
and Iluipmem. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives

unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the

total|gost of the item is depreciated separately.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included
in erﬁt or loss when the item is derecognized.

The %stimtcd useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

uildings 10-60 years
tructures 4-50 years
fachinery and equipment 2-25 years
chicles 3-10 years

pols 4-10 years ! '
urniture and fixtures 3-10 years

ease assets 3-18 years
36
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The residual value and the useful lives are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as changes in accounting
estimagtes.

Borrowing costs

The Company capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs arc
recognized in expense as incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that requires a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Financial assets and inventories that are manufactured
or otherwise produced over a short period of time are not qualifying assets. Assets that are ready for
their intended use or sale when acquired are not qualifying assets,

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual
borrawing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings. The Company immediately recognizes other borrowing
costs 4s an expense. To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the
¢ of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company shall determine the amount of borrowing costs
for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

pitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
ings of the Company that are oufstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs that the

ble assets are measured initially at cost and, subsequently, are carried at cost less accumulated
tion and accumulated impairment losses,

Amol’thation of intangible assets except for goodwill is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. The residual
value of intangible assets is zero. However, as there are no foreseeable limits to the periods over
which |club memberships are expected to be available for use, this intangible asset is determined as
having an indefinite useful life and not amortized.

tellectual property rights 5-10 years
evelopment expenses 3-10 years
Port facilities usage rights 2-75 years

ther intangible assets 2-25 years

o
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Amortization periods and the amortization methods for intangible assets with finite uscful lives are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives of intangible assets that are not being
amortized are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support indefinite useful life assessments for those assets. Changes are
accounted for as changes in accounting estimates,

(a) FTesearch and development

enditures on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
hnical knowledge and understanding, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Development
expenditures are capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or
g cess is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the

mpany intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the
et. Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

bodied in the specific asset to which they relate. All other expenditures, including
ditures on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as
urred. {0

Exp#oration for and evaluation of mineral resources

The Company is engaged in exploration projects for mineral resources through equity ownership in
the mines or other contractual arrangements. Expenditures related to the development of mineral
resources are recognized as exploration or development intangible assets. The nature of these
intangible assets are as follows:

{a) Ei ploration and evaluation assets
|
|

loration and evaluation assets consist of expenditures for topographical studies, geophysical
ics and trenching. These assets are reclassified as development assets when it is proved that
the exploration has identified an economically feasible mine.

(b) Development assets

]Jevelopment assets consist of expenditures for the evaluation of oil fields, facility construction,
illing for viability and others. These development assets are reclassified as industrial rights
ining rights) at inception of the extraction,

-~
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Impajrment for financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to

determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if

‘tive evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and

e loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be

ted reliably. However, losses expected as a result of future events, regardless of likelihood, are
ognized.

to the attention of the holder of the asset about the following loss events:

ificant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

reach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

ecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,;
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
not yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group.

In addition, for equity instrument classified as available-for-sale financiel assets, a significant or

pro

(a)

l$ ged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

If ﬁxﬂmcial assets have objective evidence that they are impaired, impairment losses are measured and
recogni

zed,

Ai nancial assets carried at amortized cost
i

impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If it is not practicable to obtain the
rument’s estimated future cash flows, impairment losses would be measured by using prices
om any observable current market transactions. The Company can recognize impairment losses
ectly or establish a provision to cover impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, the
ount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
ing after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit
ing), the previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed either directly or by adjusting
allowance account.

39




POSCO
Notes to Consolidated Financial $Statements, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(b) #mancial assets carried at cost

there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred on an unquoted equity
trament that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
trurnent, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
ount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed.

© fxwilable«for—salc financial assets

'hen a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in
er comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
ulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified
m equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has
t been derecognized. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an
uity instrument classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss. If, in a
bsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
nd the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
ecognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal
ognized in profit or loss.

porting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
tion exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill and intangible assets

that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, irrespective of whether there is

ement estimates the recoverable amount of an individual asset. If it is impossible to measure
ividual recoverable amount of an asset, then management estimates the recoverable amount of a
cashsgenerating unit (“CGU”). A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to
sell. | | The value-in-use is estimated by applying a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which estimated
futurb cash flows have not been adjusted, to the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by thef asset or CGU.
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impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

ill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each CGU that is expected to benefit from
ergies arising from the goodwill acquired. Any impairment identified at the CGU level will
uce the carrying value of goodwill and then be used to reduce the carrying amount of the ather
in the CGU on a pro rata basis. Except for impairment losses in respect of goodwill which are

ine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
ing amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
iation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

urrent assets held for sale

urrent assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be
red primarily through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held for sale. In
o be classified as held for sale, the assets or disposal groups must be available for immediate
their present condition and their sale must be highly probable. The assets or disposal groups
e classified as non-current assets held for sale arc measured at the lower of their carrying
t and fair value less cost to sell.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of disposal
group |to fair value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to
sell, up to the cumulative impairment loss previously recognized in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1036
"Imd‘a irment of Assets”.

\
A non-current asset that is classified as held for sale or part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale is| not depreciated(or amortized).

Non-F erivative financial liabilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities inte financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or other financial liabilities in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial liabilities. The Company recognizes financial liabilities
in the| consolidated statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisicns of the financial liability.
\

!
Fina;:::al liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial lisbilities held for trading or

designated as such upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit

C or lo Upon initial recognition, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recoghized in profit or loss as incurred.
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Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit of loss are
classified as other financial liabilities. At the date of initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
measured at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition.

Sub
effect
i
The k
whm{i

quent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
ive interest method.

fompany derecognizes a financial liability from the consolidated statement of financial position
it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires).

Con

The lf
the

comt
com{e

ertible bonds

pnvertible bonds issued by the Company can be converted into equity securities at the option of

Jnd holders. The number of shares to be issued is adjusted according to the fair value of the

on shares. The convertible bonds, which are compound financial instruments of bonds and
rsion rights, are designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Deﬂﬁatlve financial instruments and hedges

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are

mea£

ired at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

(a) Er

bedded derivatives

2

i
v\

P

Erﬁbedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately only if the

owing criteria have been met: (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and
embedded derivatives are not clearly and closely related to a separate instrument with the same
s as the embedded derivative that would meet the definition of a derivative, and {(b) the hybrid
mbined) instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
ue of separable embedded derivatives from the host contract are recognized immediately in
fit or loss. However, convertible rights of convertible bonds are not separated from the host
tract and the compound financial instruments of bonds and convertible rights are designated and
asured at fair value through profit and loss.

her derivatives

enges in the fair value of a derivative that is not designated as a hedging instrument are
ognized immediately in profit or loss.
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ompany classifies and accounts for leases as either a finance or operating iease, depending on
rms. Leases where the Company assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ip are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

inance leases

the commencement of the lease term, the Company recognizes as finance assets and finance
ilities the lower amount of the fair value of the leascd property and the present value of the
inimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Any initial direct costs
added to the amount recognized as an asset.

inimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
ontstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent
rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

depreciable amount of a leased asset is allocated to each accounting period during the period of
ected use on a systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy the Company adopts for
ilar depreciable assets that are owned. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
ill obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and its useful life,

|
(b) Qperating leases
Lfase obligations under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
lease term. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

s

=1

the
(c) dptermining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Determining whether an arrangement is, or containg, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A# inception or reessessment of the arrangement, the Company separates payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements
on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Company concludes for a financial lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, the Company recognizes an asset and a liability at
an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset that was identified as the subject of the
lease. Subsequently, the liability shail be reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance
charge on the liability recognized using the purchaser’s incremental borrowing rate of interest.
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Construction work in progress

ction work in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from
ers for contract work performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognized to date
gress billings and recognized losses. Cost includes all expenditures related directly to
ific projects and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the Company’s contract
activities based on normal operating capacity.

truction work in progress is presented as part of trade accounts and notes receivable in the
consolidated statement of financial position for all contracts in which costs incurred plus recognized

profits exceed progress billings. If progress billings exceed costs incuwrred plus recognized profits,
then|the difference is presented as amounts due to customers for contract work in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

|
Gov#:rnment grants

\
Government grants are not recognized unless there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the grant’s conditions and that the grant will be received. Government grants whose
primary condition is that the Company purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets are
educted from the carrying amount of the assets and recognized in profit or loss on a systematic and (
rational basis over the life of the depreciable assets.

Other| government grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized in profit
or losp as other income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognized.
A gqﬁ«emment grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for|the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it becomes receivable.

|
Emﬂ‘loyee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

rt-term employee benefits are employee benefits that are due to be settled within twelve months
r the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, When an employee
rendered service to the Company during an accounting period, the Company recognizes the
iscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
uvice as profit or loss. If the Company has a legal or constructive oblitation which can be
ltably measured, the Company recognizes the amount of expected payment for profit-sharing and
uses payable as liabilities.
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(b) Other long-term employee benefits

er long-term employee benefits include employee benefits that are settled beyond 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, and are calculated at
present value of the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
ice in the current and prior periods, less the fair value of any related assets. The present value
is [determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using the interest rate of corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are
ominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. Any actuarial
s and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

hange for that service as an accrued expense, after deducting any contributions already paid. If

contributions already paid exceed the contribution due for service before the end of the
orting period, the Company recognizes that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
t the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

irement benefits: Defined benefit plans

efined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
e Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the

cy in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The Company recognizes all actuarial
s and losses arising from actuarial assumption changes and experiential adjustments in other
prehensive income when incurred.

CF pany recognizes an asset, to the extent of the total of cumulative unrecognized past service
cﬁ t and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reduction in the future contributions to the plan.
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| |
P#Jt service costs, which are the change in the present value of the defined bencfits obligation for

ployee service in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or

inge to post-employment benefits, are recognized as an expense on 4 straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the Company
r

o o

ognizes the past service cost immediately.

|
StocL appreciation rights
|

Company granted share options to executives as part of the reward for their services and is
ting for the options as cash-settled share-based payment transactions. For cash-settled share-
payment transactions, the Company measures the goods or services acquired and the liability
ed at the fair value of the liability and recognizes the employment benefits and the liability

inc
during the vesting period. Until the liability is settled, the Company remeasures the fair value of the
liability at each reporting date and at the date of seitlement, with any changes in fair value recognized

fit or loss for the period as well.

|
Proﬂsions
1

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

\
The‘ risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances are taken into
account in reaching the best estimate of a provision. Where the effect of the time value of money is
mati ial, provisions are determined at the present value of the expected future cash flows.

Wh# some or all of the expenditures required to settle a provision are expected to be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be

treated as a separate asset.
|

Protl:ions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be nequired to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A provision for product warranties is recognized when the underlying products are sold. The Company

deti ines its provision for product warranties based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all
pos. Ee ouicomes against their sssociated probabilities. Regarding provision for construction
warranties, warranty period starts from the completion of construction in accordance with construction

contracts. If the Company has an obligation for warranties, provision for warranties which are {
estiutatcd based on historical warranty data are recorded as cost of construction and provision for
warrpanties during the construction period.
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Share capital

Comirion stock is classified as equity and the incremental costs arising directly attributable to the
issuapce of common stock less their tax effects are deducted from equity.

|
If the|Company reacquires its own equity instruments, the amount of those instruments (“treasury
shares’) are presented as a contra equity account. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on
the hase, sale, issuance or cancellation of its own equity instruments. When treasury shares are
sold lar reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an incresse to equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recorded in capital surplus.

Rev#nue

lue from the sale of goods, services provided and the use of assets is measured at the fair value of
dnsideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume

(a) Sa

s

ag

le of goods

enue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of activities is measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates,
venue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
eement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
sovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
limated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount
of | revenue can be measured reliably. The appropriate timing for transfer of risks and rewards
ies depending on the individual terms and conditions of the sales contract. For international

sales, this timing depends on the type of incoterms of the contract.
|

|
Service sales are recognized based on the percentage of completion method at the end of reporting

e iod, The percentage of completion is assessed by extent of service performed based on surveys.

en the outcome of a comstruction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
ecognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. Contract
sVenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variation in contract work,
claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and

can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is determined based on the
pepportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total
coptract costs.

( - hen the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the revenue is
e recognized only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. An
expected loss on the construction contract shall be recognized as an expense immediately.
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(d) lT:ntal income

ntal income from investment property, net of lease incentives granted, is recognized in profit or
logs on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
|
1

Finﬁimce income and finance costs

Finange income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial
assets), dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in the
fair velue of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it

r; s in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized in profit
on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

!

}

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and changes in the fair value of financial assets

air value through profit or loss. Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss using the
ive interest rate method,

e tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized
fit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized

t tax

nt tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the year, using
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and any adjustment to
payable in respect of previous years. The taxable profit is different from the accounting profit
the period since the taxable profit is calculated excluding the temporary differences, which will
taxable or deductible in determining taxable profit of future periods, and non-taxable or non-
ductible iterns from the accounting profit.

ferred tax

|
I?Iferred tax is recognized, using the asset-liability method, in respect of temporary differences
tween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
nounts used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable
mporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to| the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which they can be
tilized. However, deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: taxable
mporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
#ccounting profit or loss nor taxable income.
|

=
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¢ Company recognizes a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences associated
ith securities in subsidiaries and associates except to the extent that the Company is able to
ontrol the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
ifference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The Company recognizes a deferred tax asset

for deductible temporary differences arising from securities in subsidiaries and associates, to the
xtent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and

xable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

uced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
w the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized.

T}{ carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is

eferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
riod when the asset is realized or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
ve been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
m the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period to recover or
cJtle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Iferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
ted current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

T
a} thority and they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,

Earnings per share
|

The iCompany calculates bazsic earnings per share (“EPS") data for its ordinary shares, which is

pres
profi

nted at the end of the statement of comprehensive income. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordilrary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.
|

OpeT‘ating segments

And erating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may |earn revenues and incur expenditures, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions

abo

with‘ Ifmy of the Company's other components. All operating segments’ operating results are
regu

rly reviewed by the Company’s chief opetating decision maker (“CODM?”) to make decisions
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete

financial information is available. Management has determined that the CODM of the Company is

the

Sege

EO.

ment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment and do

not include allocated items. Segement capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to

acqu

ire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.
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Newi tandards and interpretations not yet adopted

ollowing new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been
ed and are mandatory for the Company for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2011, and

The b endments require disclosing the nature of the transferred assets, their carrying amount, and the
desctiption of risks and rewards for each class of transferred financial assets that are not derecognized
in their entirety. If the Company derecognizes transferred financial assets but still has their specific
risks |and rewards, the amendments require additional disclosures on their effect of risks. The
amendments will be applied prospectively for the Company’s annual periods beginning on or after
July(], 2011. The Company believes that there will be additional required disclosures upon initial

begitming on or after January 1, 2013. The Company is currently enalyzing the effects of adopting
this standard.

(<) K LIFRS No. 1113 “Fair Value Measurement”

The standard defines fair value and a single framework for fair value, and requires disclosures about
fair |value measurements. The standard will be applied prospectively for the Company’s annual
per'l ds beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company believes that there will be no significant
im;;ct upon initial application of this standard.

1
4, Fipancial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
t credit risk

o liquidity risk

o  market risk

o operational risk

note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Co }any's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s

—

management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated
finangial statements.
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sk management policy

e Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
mpany’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are
ablished to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

i ciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
ligations,

(b) Credit risk
i

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
trument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
eivables from customers and investment securities. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is
uenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of a nation

lyzed individually for creditworthiness.
¢ Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
ses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a

ponent established for companies of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
not vet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of
ent statistics for similar financial assets.

ociated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
e Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
ave sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,

| Company's cash flow from business, borrowing or financing is sufficient to meet the cash
requirements for the Company’s strategic investments. Management believes that the Company is
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(d) ket risk management
\

=2

——
~

o
b=

\\ttrket risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

ause of changes in market prices. The goal of market prices management is optimization of
hfit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits,

Currency risk

Each segment is influenced by a risk factor of changes in foreign currency exchange rates for the
different directions due to the difference in structure of each industry regarding the cash inflows
and cash outflows in foreign currency. The steel segment generally has a lack of foreign
currency cash outflows, while the engineering and construction segments generally have
excessive foreign currency inflows due to the nature of their respective business. Therefore, the
result of the business is affected by the changes of foreign exchange rates. The trading segment
is structured such that the cash inflows and outflows of foreign currencies are to be offset;
however, the trading segment is exposed to a risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
when there are differences in currencies on receiving and paying the foreign currency amount
and time differences.

The Company's policy in respect of foreign currency risks is a natural hedge whereby foreign
currency income is offset with foreign currency expenditures. The remaining net exposures
after the natural hedge have been hedged using derivative contracts such as forward exchange

|contracts. In addition, the Company's derivative transactions are limited to hedging actual

foreign currency transactions and speculative hedging is not permitted. Based on this policy,
the group entities have performed currency risk management specific to various characteristics
of different segments. The entities in the steel industry, which has a lack of foreign currency
cash flows, has foreign currency borrowings from banks and hedges foreign currency risks of the
foreign currency borrowings by using foreign currency swaps. The entities in the engineering
and construction segments, which have excessive foreign currency cash flows, have hedged
foreign currency risks by using forward exchange contracts, Entities in the trading industry
have hedged foreign currency risks by using forward exchange contracts when the foreign
currencies received and paid are different.

Interest rate risk

The Company mostly borrows at fixed interest rates. The Company’s management monitors
interest rate risks regularly.
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i |
(e) lﬁl nagement of capital risk

\
The fundamental goal of capital management is the maximization of shareholders’ value by means
((Jf the stable dividend policy and the retirement of treasury shares. The capital structure of the

jompany consists of equity and net debt, deducting cash and cash equivalents and current financial

i;t truments from borrowings. The Company applied the same financial risk management strategy
that was applied in the previous period.

The equity attributable to owners as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 is as follows:
|
dlr mitlions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010
!
Total borrowings 26811717 21,140241 12,199,485
TLess: Cash and cash equivalents 4,598,682 3,521,045 2,273,059
jr borrowings 22213,035 17,619,196 9,926,426
'gtal equity 40,729,920 38,537,167 33,333,681
}Th:t borrowings-to-equity ratio 54.54% 45.72% 29.78%
|
i
C 1
|
1
i
!
|
|
|
|
|
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5. C? th and Cash Equivalents

Cash pnd cash equivalents as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

|
(in millions of Won) December31,2011  December31,2010  January 1, 2010
Cagh W 23,954 4931 339,240
D &md deposit and checking accounts 1,855,929 1,426,715 735,759
Other financial cash equivalents 2,718,799 2,089,359 1,198,060
| W 4,598,682 3,521,045 2,273,059

As oif December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010, cash and cash equivalents of W 211,780 million,

Wl
planig.

6. Tk

de Accounts and Notes Receivable

4,443 million and W 86,065 million are restricted for the use in the expansion of the Company

{a) T de accounts and notes receivable as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

-current

de accounts and notes receivable
pital loase receivables

‘Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

December 31,2001  December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
W 10,265,421 8415973 4,740,600
117,230 57374 59,686
1,361,416 074,631 699,293
(203,552) {228,967) {199,346}
11,450,515 9.219,011 5,300,233
45,061 28,792 24,391
147,634 258,664 504,633
(9,634) (13,834) (6,249)
183,061 273,622 522,775
W 11,633,576 9492633 5823008

Thejurade accounts and notes receivable sold to financial institution, for which the derecognition

of ‘
(note 15).

{v) ¢apita] lease receivables are as follows:

cnngitions were not met, amounted to ¥132,908 million, ¥ 358,676 million and W30,600 million as
ecember 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010, respectively and are included in bank borrowings

J’:‘n millions of Won)

: Customer Contents December 31,2011 December3i, 2010  January 1, 2010

kﬂ:lrea Eectric Powor Combined thermal

‘ power cycle 1-4 W 199,141 253,055 307,191

Tanant of EXPO Lease contract 63,723 62983 257,128

‘ W 264,864 316038 564,319
54
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( (¢) The gross amount and present value of minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2011, 2010
and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
|
(i millions of Won) December31, 2011 December31, 2010  January 1, 2010
He s than | year W 141,670 82927 80244
1 year - 5 years 169,265 283,566 532,044
ater than 5 year 24,519 51,534 83,812
nrealized nterest income (70,590) {101,989) {140,781)
Present value of minimum lease payment W 264.364 316038 564319

7. Oiher Financial Assets
\

(f‘ra miilions of Won)

F’ ncial assets at fnfr value through profit or loss
| Financinl assets hold for trading

| Derivatives assets hekd for trading
ilable-for-gale financial assets

(o-maturity mvestments

| Current portion of held-to-maturity securities (bonds)
ns and other raceivables

hort-tarm fnancinl ingtruments (*1,2)

pecial purpose deposits (*3)

1 hort-term loars

1 Other accounts reccivable

i Alowanee for bid debl accounts

*D)

(a) cher short-term financial assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

December 31, 2011 Becember 31, 2010 Junpary 1, 2010
W 50,861 182,208 05811
92,055 133,731 26,641
31,651 42,831 35,643
876 3,657 2.N7
1,739,186 2,803 492 5,491,352
18,558 41967 49309
167330 278,029 198,878
1,067,163 744,785 462,529
59,028 47,828 58,119
73,343 21230 21,343
221,125 145,780 106,852
(64,906) (63,236} (56,671}
W 3656270 4383,302 7.211,023

s of December 31, 2011 and 2010, short-term financial instruments of ¥1,670 million and
830 million are secured related to long-term borrowings of forestry association, respectively.

(*2) Short-term financial instruments of DaeMyung TMS of W400 million are provided as collateral to

(*3) |

335

Kookmin bank related to a derivative instrument deposit.
s of December 31, 2011 and 2010, W17,175 million and 14,101 million, respectively, are
restricted for the use in a government project.
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(b) ¢ her long-term financial assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
i

(k millions of Won}
‘ December 3E, 2011

December 31, 2010 Japunry 1, 2010

ﬁ‘i ncial asseis at fakr valus through profit or loss

i |Derivatives asstes held for trading W 16,696 6,300 60422
Amihblc-for—sal: financiu] assets
1 Long-term available-for-gale securities (equity instrumenis) (*1, 2) 4,500,197 6,022,945 4,786,401
! |Long-tenn available-for-sale securities (bonds) 25,847 7827 120812
| |Long-terin available-for-salks securities (others) 41,902 5331 01,381
Hel-to-matunty investments
" |Held-to-maturity securities (bonds) 34,608 36,056 91,844
n and other receivables
Long-term financinl mstruments 37,07 4154 140
Cash deposils (*3} 658 B9 340
! |Lang-term loans 208,106 174982 123,907
|' | Leng-tenn other accounts receivable 86,922 68,652 6,121
| Accrued income 9386 3,523 2245
Deposits 112,245 90,113 49,125
Allowance for bad debt accounts (38.629) {31.026) (24.078)
| W 5,125,672 5417038 5,308,660

g,

exchangeable bonds issued.

g,

S

million are restricted, respectively.

|
8. Ii}*ventorles

*1) As of December 31, 2011, 2,186,546 shares equivalent to 19,678,919 American depository
receipts (“ADRs") of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. have been pledged as collateral for the

*2) The Company recorded impairment loss for securities of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. amounting fo
W 503,058 million prior to January 1, 2010. During the year ended December 31, 2011,
there was a further significant decline in the fair value of shares of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. for a
prolonged petiod, which was considered as objective evidence of impairment. As a result,
an impairment losses of W 107,377 million was recognized in profit or loss in 2011.

%3) The Company is required to provide deposits to maintain checking accounts and, accordingly,
the withdrawal of these deposits is restricted. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, W40

|
{a) l;mvcntories a3 of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(in wyllions of Won) December 31,2011 December3l, 2010 January 1, 2010
ished goods W 1,556,573 1,093 446 616,803
handise 1,185496 854,624 171,586
i-finished goods 2,163,124 1,695,522 1,034,206
materiaks 2,563,837 2,516,167 1,118,235
Fuel and materials 758,333 670,218 556,545
(;E truction inventories 1,245,546 478,973 402,361
faterials-in-transit 2857434 2,252,136 1,018461
Others 168,895 86,015 45263
| 12490238 9,647,101 4.963.460
{Less: aliowance for inventorics valuation (215,594) (87,895) (45.047)
W 12,283,644 9,559,206 4918413
56




:/-_ The} mounts of valuation losses of inventories recognized as a cost of goods sold during the years
' ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are W140,391 million and ¥ 38,762 million, respectively.
|
9, N%) -Current Assets Held for Sale
Details of non-current assets held for sale and related liabilities as of December 31, 2011 are as
follows:
{in miflions of Wan)}
} The Controlling
f Company (*1) Subsidiaties (*2) Total
Al* 7]
Trade accounts and notes receivable and
o* er financial assets W - 63,154 63,154
Inventories . 23,186 23,186
Property, plant and squipment 16,887 172,538 139,425
Intangible assets . 7389 7,389
Other assets - 45883 45,883
16,887 312,150 329,037
Llabilities
Trade eccounts and note payables and
other financml labilites - 28,500 28,509
Borrpwings - 144,920 144,920
-y ﬂth1 liabilities - 33,178 33,178
(. | - 226,607 226,607
Net agsets W 16887 85543 102430

57

(*1) The controlling company plans to dispose of equipments of existing steel manufacturing plants
| due to the completion and expected use of new plant. Book value of property, plant and
| equipment which are expected to be sold by the first half of 2012, net of impairment recorded,
| in the amount of W 16,887 million, are reclassified as non-current assets held for sale.

(*ﬁ] Daewco International Corporation, one of the controlling company’s subsidiaries, determined
| to dispose of Daewoo Cement (Shandong) Co., Ltd. in order to close down its non-core
| | business and collect long-term receivables and securities, with the board of director’s resolution
on July 28, 2011. Daewoo International Corporation entered into a sales contract with China
United Cement Group Co., Ltd, on August 9, 2011 and requested approval from the Ministry of
Commerce of the People's Republic of China is in progress as of December 31, 2011.
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10. IPvestments in Associates

(a) Details of investments in associates as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

follows:

(i»T Atillions of ¥on)

Company

December31. 3011 December 31,3010 __Janmury 1, 2010
Numbet of shares Qwnees hp (%6) Acquislign coz) Dool valos Buook valus Beok valua

4320000 400 w 1266500 W L4 W 1314508 W -
17,193,510 p1] 2398M 194042 2148 .
18.130:000 43,00 90650 134,31 45466 MIH0
9150000 %00 43300 M2y 2,15 40,713
4528384 1858 45551 33584 weor 1067
A nn 13300 58N - -
4,209,280 40,08 15410 136M 12666 384N
4288 30,00 7233 13409 20989 13,089
2,008,000 mi 1040 2D naz 1357
. . . 04,507 1562 91442
1988558 2,000,061 205820
3254150,000 A0 351609 34268 - -
. 4H5.00 212446 168212 21316 *
2344658 49.00 137981 163292 120N 190,149
2010.759.183 30,00 329350 115284 141539 93543
2400 2000 13759 12791 1339 -
- 2000 121,209 L9772 108,177 113,108
400 100,770 119556 100,536 -
- 2500 61 961 o985TI 85213 63.567
2% nM 038 35465 67401 AL A%
118099219 2504 131 5 136173 86 -
433350 50.00 18359 A7 29201 14N
254649 ;moo NS 16380 0,000 45361
. 000 2,44 1 290 .
. . . 18731 119420 29867

1846094 1305464 454829

W Jadige W ANEAIS W 0448

@1 millions of Won)
Company Fair value
$ungjin Geotec Co., Ltd. W 184,830
|
!
i
i
58

|
()] Tie fair value of investments in associates for which there are published price quotations as of
December 31, 2011 are as follows;
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I
(c) ’]flLe movements of investments in associates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are

as follows:

December 31, 2011

a—
—

{in m‘(luous of Won)

i Des. 31, 2010 Equlty method Other Increase Dec, 31,2011
; Company Book Value Profits {Losses) (Decrease) (*1) Book Value
[Domiestic]
Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Lid. W 1314808 W 450 W (20,148) W 1,377,114
Susgiin Geotec Co., Ltd. 127245 (33,650) 1347 194,942
SNNC Co., Ld, 145466 49,605 (40,940) 154,131
Bugdn-Gimhae Light Reil Transit Co., Lid 42,151 (7924) - 34227
Cheongna IBT Co., Lid 39,607 (4.043) - 35,564
Blue ocean PEF - 1478 34493 35971
APOLIS Co., Ltd, 32566 (16992} - 15674
ATE Ca., Ltd, 20989 3,141 (1,721) a8
CHUNGJU ENTERPRISE CITY
VELOPMENT Co. L 21317 (146) {145) 21,026
156712 (4290) {57915) 94,507
‘ 2000961 69,629 {85.025) 1,985,565
[Fore
POSCO-NPS Niobum LLC - 5658 369210 374858
AMCI (WA) Pty Lud. 213446 (3287) (12,355) 168212
Nigkel Mining Company SAS 180,671 {1073) (5,306) 168292
RASCO 141,939 38911 (49,966) 128 334
R EA LNG Ltd. 133,793 3,026 (13918) 127801
C Moly LLC 109,177 (154) 1349 109,772
! DM§A, AMSA 100,536 38 18,982 119,556
BX §TEEL POSCC
Cild RolledSheet Co., Lid. 89313 1,797 4457 95377
CAML Resources Pty. Ltd. 67400 15517 (27453} 55465
-East Asia Gas Pipefine Company Lsd. 56,636 (25) 79,564 136,175
POSCHROME 29201 1A22 (5.49) 24574
USB1POSCO Indusirics 40,000 (31,585) 8465 16380
NCR LLC 23,931 (85) 261 24,107
Othe 119420 (16028) 192339 265,731
‘ 1305464 (19060} 559,690 1346004
W 1306425 _W 50569 _W 474665 _W 3831659

("‘lj Other increase or decrease represents the changes in investments in associates due to acquisitions,

59

flisposals, dividends received, change in capital adjustments arising from translations of financial
| statements of foreign investees and others.
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2) [December 31, 2010 (3

i Jan. 1, 2010 Equity method Other Increase Deac, 31, 2010
i Company Book Value Profits {Losscs} (Decroase) Book Value
I
[Domis
obio Life [nsurance Co., Ltd. w S 54168 W 1,260,640 W 1,314,808
alin Geatee Co., Lid, - {9,108} 236,353 221,245
SNNC Co., Lid, 94,520 63,680 (12,734) 145,466
Busaph-Ginhae Light Rad Transit Co., Lid 2,715 (563} (0 42,151
Chgangna IBT Co., Ltd. 2,067 (4,201} 41,741 39,607
ETAPOLIS Co., Lid. 38,490 (5,824) - 2
{ATE Co., Ltd 13,089 (558) 8,488 20,989
CHUNGIU ENTERPRISE CITY
DEVELOPMENT Co.Ltd 13,527 7,135 655 1,317
91,442 3M9 61,921 156,712
; 205,820 108,078 1,597,063 2000961
[Foraien]
AMCI (WA) Pty Lid. - - 213446 213,446
Nickel Mining Company SAS 150,149 9,581 (19.059) 180,671
KOBRASCO 98,943 51,210 {8,214) 141,938
KOREA LNG Ltd. - 2,934 130,859 133,793
Euceka Moly LLC 113,105 (1,165) (2,763) 109,177
§A, AMSA - (39) 100,575 100,536
YTEEL POSCO
i RolledSheet  Co.. Ltd. 63,667 2441t 1,235 89313
CAML Resources Pty. Lid 41,496 15,660 10,245 67,401
South-East Asia Gas Pipelioe Commany Ltd, - - 56,636 56,636
HROME 11,441 783 16977 29201
SIFOSCO Inclustries 45,961 (9,165) 3,204 40,000
R LLC - {40) 239M 23931
89,867 (19.59) 49,144 £19,420
654,629 743579 576256 1,305,464
k4 230449 W 182657 W 2173319 W 1206423,
: . . . . . {
(*1)|Other increase or decroase represents the changes in investment in associates due to acquisitions, e
' |disposals, dividends received, change in capital adjustments arising from translations of financial
| istatements of foreign investees and others.
(d) Summarized financial information of associates as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1,
2010 are as follows:
1)|December 31, 2011
| @n mitlions of Won)
| Company Asggets Liablities Equity Sales Neti {los)
[Domestic)
Kyobo Life Insuranao Co., Lid. w 60,828,181 54,780,580 5041600 11,610,607 487,785
Sungjin Gaotec Co., Lid. 17568 &11,549 106,117 663870 (33.394)
SNNC Co., Lid 610059 260318 34041 4134m 81246
'|  Pusan-Gimhac Light Rafl Transk Co., Lid 817402 680492 136910 34650 (1,606)
' Choongna IBT Co, Lid 433,306 263377 19,929 303 (20,520
| ke ocean PEF 385,060 254353 130,707 79483 5371
|| METAPOLIS Co,Lid 599341 534775 M Ack 21333 {36381)
|| POSMATE Ca, Lid. 20403 15317 75086 Lisoze 8592
|| CHUNGU ENTERPRISE CITY
. PEVELOPMENT Co., Lid X2 387 250,485 45,402 087459 2,009
i | [Foreign]
/| POSCO-NPS Nidbum LLC 737 . 9737 AR 1347
| Nickel Mining Conipany 3AS 4063518 $4,900 401,518 142,456 {12.983)
: KOBRASCO 314458 56,691 251,761 130,728 1391
l KOREA LNG L. 24,169 10492 13677 95385 92,600
| DMSA, AMSA 3807261 10790,.755 1,827,506 939 939
BX STEEL POSCO Cold RalledSheet Co., 1,099,340 5318 s 1421,784 78
CAML Resorces Pty. Lid, 217,677 105456 12221 278778 45567 \ !
South-East Asia Gas Pipoline Company Lid. 596,972 53,140 543332 . (0]
: POSCIIROME 41,740 4,120 1810 96,785 1,028
i USS-FOSCO [ndusirics 470,963 434,722 36241 1,062,110 {61,478)
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December 31, 2010

{In millions of Won)

Company Astets Liablliftes Equity Sales Net income (less)
{Domestic]
Kyobo Life lnswrance Co., Ltd W 57,563,928 52926,182 4,637,746 Jad3a0 232,568
Sungiin Gaotea Ca., Ltd. 00,567 460621 140046 201351 (9.539)
SNNC Ce., Lid, 548354 305839 343,045 533291 937
Busan-Gimhog Light Rail Transk Co., Lid 577,502 S50R896 168,606 105 {2252)
Cheangna BT Co,, Lid. 457438 266020 191,418 666 (39
METAPOLIS Co, Lid 600290 518914 2137% 176511 {14.342)
POSMATE Co., Lid. 94030 3710 70260 130418 27707
CHUNQIU ENTERPRISE CITY
DEVELOPMENT Co.. L 254216 212779 4193 80,772 20,58
[Foreign]
Nickel Mining Company SAS 528637 95,166 2341 16,149 21213
KOBRASCO J4B954 6307 bl 136860 81997
KOREA LNG Lid. 13840 o 13,763 17691 16925
DMSA, AMSA 3301319 3,930,064 1371235 - (987)
BX STEBL POSCO Cokd RollodShest Ca., 1003404 675931 3563 1423734 971643
CAML Resources Pry. Lid. 210319 65,298 143021 25256 46969
South-East Asia Gas Pipelive Company Lid, 227499 17966 200,533 - .
POSCHROME 766511 7693 918 316 6305
USS-FOSCO Indusirks 439290 360,082 20208 102038 {15710}
January 1, 2010
(in miflions of Won)
‘ Company Assets Liabilities Equity
[Domestic]
SNNC Co., Ltd. W 505,417 285,761 219,656
Busan-Gimhae Light Rail Transit Co., Ltd. 485,887 315,029 170,858
Cheongna IBT Co., Lid. 328,046 294946 33,100
METAPOLIS Co., Ltd. 460,073 364,156 95917
POSMATE Co., Ltd, 59,804 17372 42432
CHUNGIU ENTERPRISE CITY
DEVELOPMENT Co.,, Lid 144,992 123,640 21352
[Foreign]
Nickel Mining Company SAS 551,969 102,228 445,741
KOBRASCO 273311 75424 197,887
BX STEEL POSCO Cold RolledSheet Co., 1,018,978 791,925 227,053
CAML Resources Pty. Lid, 137,046 52,313 84,733
POSCHROME 64,564 9,49 55,070
USS-POSCO Industries 443,184 338,318 104,866
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|
T
I

i1. Ibvestment Property, Net
\

(in millions of Won)

ok

 Less: Accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss

Carrying value

(a} Ixﬁvestment property as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as foliows:

_December 31,2011 _December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

W 766,905 701,005 629,357
(239,372) {207,640) {71,150}

W 527,533 493,365 558,207

s of December 31, 2011, the fair value of investment property is W 837,511 million, among

hich the Company evaluated investment property of 7 subsidiaries including International

‘Business Center Corporation as its book value amounted to W 82,396 million since it is believed

at fair value is approximately same as book value.

{(b) ¢hangcs in the carrying value of investment property for the years ended December 31, 2011 and

2010 are as follows:

b

1) For the year ended December 31, 2011

Business
{In millions of Won) _Boginning Acquigition _comblnation Dis posal Depreciation (*1)  Others (*2) Ending
Land W 21464 41243 94 (57.905) {14,010} IR591 219477
Buildings 2718361 109,757 (56,953) (22,783) (6,549) 301,733
Strustures 3340 072 . - {840) (2549} 6323
Total W 493365 | 57072 94 [114:858) (37.413) 29293 §27,533

2)|For the year ended December 31,2010

(*1) Impairment losses of investment property emounted to W 23,048 million are included.
| (*2) Includes reclassification resulting from changing purpose of use, adjustment of foreign
! currency translation difference and others.

. Busincss

(in niitlions of Won) _Baginning Acquisition combination Dilsposal Depreciation (*1)  Others (*2) Ending
Land W 238,682 87,114 7,923 (65,759 (60,463) 3967 211,464
| Buildings 311495 47,088 20,548 (47,124) (B4,856) 25010 278361
| | Siructures 2030 1945 - (809) In 3,540
i [Total W__558.207 134.202 30416 (112.883) (145.928) 29,351 493,365
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(*1) Impairment losses of investment property amounted to W 127,515 million are included.
(*2) Includes reclassification resulting from changing purpose of use, adjustment of foreign
‘ currency translation difference and others.



PO.
Not
For1

cO
s to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
he years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

12, Py

operty, Plant and Equipment, Net

(a) P;roperty, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(fﬁ mitlions of Won) 2011 2010 January 1, 2010

Coast W 51,653,789 46,992,804 41,210,602
Less : Accurnulated depreciation (23,134,937) (21,523,736) (18,866,625)
Less : Government grants (65,668) (31,328) (1,230)

Book vahie W 28,453,184 25437740 22342747

(b} The changes in carrying value of property, plant and equipment as for the years ended December

1)

e

3;,

2011 and 2010 are: as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2011
W millions of Won) Business
Beglaning Acquisition {*E) combinimtion Dispossl Baprecintion(*3) Othens (*3) Ending

Land w 2011.85) 450,151 DLE06 {55.751) 0421 2540178
Bulidings 1,551,183 01,166 N3 (38,753) IZTI.MT) $I3% 1019829
Stpuctures 2470,189 28952 3981 (16.778) (16307 S5610 2200437
Machinery and oquipment 13777382 2202960 WIST) 45.950) (1.503.342) 955463 18,1938
Vehicks 17 21041 199) {1.795) {17394) {763) 66,743
Took T5AN Ban 21259 {1477 {37.43) 301 20477
Funtiture ond fivtures 1248797 662! 199 (1.687) (28.249) 6626 169,609
Capita] Leass Assees 43,106 30 X (143} {14.08t) 1683 B
Constraction in-progress 3,719,762 459354 10336 - . (52351 308805

Toul 35437340 2061160 BB 1155.305) RAMAT) 106783 HAsiN

(*1} Acquisition includes assets transferred from construction-in-progress.
(*2) Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment amounted to W 25,852 million are
included.

i1 {(*3) Includes reclassification for changing purpose of use, adjustment of foreign currency

translation difference and others.

) For the year ended December 31, 2010

| {in otitons of o) Business

' Beginning Acquisition (*1) sombinailen Drlapoaal Depreciation Others (*1) Endi
Land W 1, 167519 189000 94.126 (26,2398 7452 010,884

| Bultdings 1754487 2507 26812 (68,201) (2!7.!!5) 361083 35381,163

| Strucures 137213 592421 a9 {9410} (131.336) 27463 070,189

" | Machinery and equipment 11735492 4170812 X724 {59912 (XA40:608) 15974 1837392
Vehicles 2313 9 1122 (3524) (27.359) {1122) 84,073
Tonk 41107 43480 1520 {26324 {040 10033 5437
Fumniture and Fcures 84232 67,128 2559 (7063) {52,601) A2 12144877
Capital Leasn Asseis '.‘3.060 nMe 1 {556} {11.599) 11.263 43,106
Co ion-i 3493240 1488 {34,796) 6.]0043) 7762
Total W ng: 47 11.030.1% 720.004 {221.772) M {3.300362) gﬂ;r,vg

(*1) Acquisition includes assets transferred from construction-in-progress.
(*2) Includes reclassification for changing purpose of use, adjustment of foreign currency
translation difference and others.
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(c) H rrowing costs capitalized and the capitalized interest rate for the years ended December 31, 2011

? d 2010 are as follows:

(d) Pl»edged as collateral assets
|

(in millions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31, 2010
Alverage expenditure costs 1,433,877 350,000
Capitalized borrowing costs 18,777 12,897
ﬂFapitalized interest rate 5.49% 3.68%

é] niiitfons of Won) Collate ral right holder December31, 2011  December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
nd (*1) Korean Development Bank and others W 381,096 135486 220,732
ilings ond structures {*1) Korean Development Bank and others 139,169 165,251 105,465

Mpchinery and equipment  The Export-Ttmport Bank of Korea and others 218816 21,521 387828

i W 739081 632,258 114025

¢' 1) Investment property are included.

(e) Based on an asset life study performed in 2011, the Company changed the estimated useful life of

tlﬁs change in the estimated useful life.

c:ertam meachinery and equipments in its steel busmess from 8 years to 15 years. During the year
ended December 31, 2011, the depreciation costs decreased by W 1,227,169 million as a result of



POSCO

For

Notas to Consolidated Financlal Statements, Continued
qhe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

13. ¢ odwill and Other Intangible Assets

(a) G will and other intangible assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

£y
- . ‘:

follows
(frl millions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
ost 5,457,923 4,697429 928,520
Less : Accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment loss (210,923) {77,634} (173,895)
ILess : Government grants (2,072 {626) (394)
value W 5244028 4,619.169 754231

® 1

¢ changes in carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets for the years ended
cember 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2011
Iogrgmyp Daerenss
On B of 1) o Bsgaaiop Acouglies _ _ Divelpement Beww cwbitos _ Digessl | _Amenimies, Otea('3) __Eadng
Gooderill {*1) W LML - - 2 - (14555 - LS6AT
Inieliectus] property righs 100 17402 . - (234} {14258 In asor
Promas i el {42) I8l 13,85 - 9 QST (R91y 124138 (R IE]
Development exponse 9I 13378 52 &R ) (20091) (K> ] 45,583
PPon facilites usige righs 10141 - - . . (%130 (185) SLUHE
Explorutation nd cvikaation assets A 13381 . . (RHD) - (92960 4TNIR2
Mining devrlapmem asseis 1o3384 A48l - - 55) - {1624) !.-l u.m
Clier refationnbips TTR080 - - BAK . H&MBJ -
Other iniangible assets ol 2387 : LA N (398} (I __..M
W ____iseim 2XE ifl. RV XY ﬂm 77 LT
(*1) Acquisition amounts include goodwill amounting to W 119,260 million related to the
acquisition of POSCO Thainox Co., Ltd. in 2011 (note 38). An impairment loss of
W 14,958 million is related to the negative capital of DAESAN (CAMBODIA) Co. Ltd.
(*2) Premium in rental includes memberships with indefinite useful lives.
(*3) Includes translation differences and other adjustments.
For the year ended December 31, 2010
Lntrcass —[T.TT]
fin mitkans of W) Deglnning Atquisiiten Developement Busiaeys eomhinuiion Dhspadl Amerpmiloa,  Othegy ("3} Endixg
Goodwt] (1) w 80080 - LIT88) . - . 147,743
Induechaal property rights 30363 7.353 - ELb L] [{F4] LI At 119,100
Prermium In rental (2) 168,301 BN - M [{X0F] {788) {41 430) 138,76
Development sxpenss 4164 21417 1 1301 (7 [{ETST)] aun 878
Pt fecBitics Leage rights 99,532 oM . - - {1941 5) - {00,361
Expionatiticn dnd evilustion asteh - B30 - 309,557 - - IAH
Minkg development asset - 0793 - 1007361 - . ] (BIAS(
Clem relstiomipa - . . Ty - [{1A I!I)) -
Onher ieanghle 3s3css — LISRRS A 148581 (1204 128258 [EAT) m}

AT i 2 Y75 T S Y

(*1) Acquisition amounts include goodwill amounting to ¥ 1,163,922 million related to
acquisition of Daewoc International Corporation in 2010 (note 38).

(*2) Premium in rental includes memberships with indefinite useful lives.

(*3) Includes translation differences and other adjustments.
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or the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to individual operating entities

determined to be CGUs. The goodwill amount as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and
ermary 1, 2010 are as follows:

(in r# flions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
i
Daewyoo International Corporation (*1) W 1,163,922 1,163,922 -
POSCO Engineering Company
(f¢ erly Deewoo Engineering
Company) (*2) 194,637 194,637 194,637
POSCO-Thainox Public
! 119 - -
Company Limited (*3) 259
Mul(iI.: units without significant goodwill 178,999 89,184 73443
Total W 1,656,817 1,447,743 268,080

(1§

2ecoverable amounts of Daewoo international Corporation were determined based on value-in-
se. As of December 31, 2011, value-in-use is estimated by applying 6.90%~7.40% discount
te and 2.65%~3.15% terminal growth rate with 5 years, the period for the estimated future cash
lows, based on management's business plan. No impairment loss of goodwill was recognized
luring the year ended December 31, 2011 as the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value
of the CGU,

Recoverable amounts of POSCO Engineering Company were determined based on value-in-use.

As of December 31, 201, value-in-use is estimated by applying 11.71%~13.71% discount rate and

%~3% terminal growth rate with 5 years, the period for the estimated future cash flows based on
anagement’s business plan. No impairment loss of goodwill was recognized during the year
ded December 31, 2011 as the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value of the CGU.

No impairment loss of goodwill was recognized since there was no objective evidence of

mpairment noted subsequent to September 30, 2011, the date POSCO- Thainox Public Company

i Limited was acquired.
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the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

14. ?ther Assets

1
(in| millions of Won)
\

qther current assets
- Advance payment
' Prepaid expenses

' Others

(ﬁ millions of Won)

cher non-current assets
Eong-term advance payment
| Long-term prepaid expenses

{a) dﬂher current assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and Janvary 1, 2010 are as follows:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
W 1,035,846 899,006 650,496
180,369 72,180 35408
3,927 973 4,282
W 1,220,142 972,159 690,186
(b) dllher long-term assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
W 2,805 141,726 79,444
190,741 109,835 115447
436,651 408,253 55,584
W 630,287 659814 250475

Dthers (*1)
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("‘L) Includes guarantee deposits of ¥ 257,878 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 in
relation to exploration of Australia Roy Hill iron ore mine.
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15. # rrowings
|

(a) S ort-term borrowings and current portion of long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2011, 2010
and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

|
i mithans of Won) Intevest Decomber3dt, Decembert, January 1,

i Boank Borrowing due Mmuprity date Ratel%) | i 1010
Shori-kink berrow ings
; Match 2011~ March 2012~
Mnhlﬂuﬂs BOA, olhers Docermber 2011 Deecrcher 2012 0d61 W N30 200289 108,082
: Jaary 2001~ Jomumsy 2012~
Bank borrowings {*1) HSBC, othars Decersber 2011 December 2012 0.3~11.4 9339182 GEES. 76 1067,103
| . BSnes 7089185 2173172
C\m»* of log-1ena borrowings
| Decomber 2000~ February 2012~
Current portion of toog-ter: bank borvowings (*1) NH Barl, others Sepdember 010 D ber 2012 0.7-110 418400 27 46859
Curven portion of forsign Toan NATIXIS Iume 1984 Detember 2012 10 851 953 1063
1 KB IvesimentdSecuriics,  May 2007~ Februacy 2012~
Current plortion of debeniures (*1) cthera November 2008 Novewber 2012 52~7.3 A0 2995726 315,085
Lers { Qurrent postion of
’d-mn on debeatures mived ~J88 {3801} [edi>}
121 338115 8927
| V_lomisl —loamin ___3enom
|
(*1)| |Property, plant and equipment, investment in associates and long-term prepaid expenses
|

lamounting to W 706,560 million, ¥ 103,169 million and ¥ 391 million, respectively, are
|provided as collateral related to short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings and debentures.

(b) Lnng-tmm borrowings, excluding current portion as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, (7
2010 are as follows: .

ﬂnuﬂl&nuo{ Ton) Interest D ber 38, D berd, J y i,
: Bank Borrowing date Maturity date Rale(%) 2011 2o 1010
i Kaorean ™ Bank. v ber 2000~  Jomuary 2013~
Long-tanm bank borrowiigs (*1) ovhers Scpiembor 2011 Auguai 1039 0.1-130 W 4614301 343321 1381648
Less | Peesen valuo discoum (302,118} (81,510) {%8
Fm'ﬁ Man (*2} NATIXIS June 1984 March 2017 0 w7 4474 s
| Korems Davokepment Bank.  June 2006~ May 2013~
*1.34) others Decombier 2011 Ducember 2030 1.6-8.8 11,776,893 1357310 6915194
Less { Discount on dobeniares issued (M4356) (54649 (T0A45)
Add: Premium on deb cedemplion 21493 10138 087
Add : [Premims on debentures Baved [¥H) &137 .
| ST Y T T 7T

(*])%Troperty, plant and equipment, investment in associates and long-term prepaid expenses
ounting to ¥ 706,560 million, ¥ 103,169 million and W 391 million, respectively, are
ovided as collateral related to short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings and debentures.

(*3) In 2009, one of the controlling company's subsidiaries, Daewoo International Corporation,
igsued convertible bonds with a face value of USD 300 million and a 5 year maturity. They are
dlassified as fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value (W 333,004 million) as of
December 31, 2011.

‘The Company redeemed JPY 39,970,000,000 (75.7% of total face value) exchangeable bonds in

‘Angust 2011. The Company issued exchangeable bonds with SK Telecom Co., Ltd. ADRs in

ugust 2011, The Company accounted for these exchangeable bonds as long-term debts vnder X-

RS. The exchangeable bonds may be redeemed prior to maturity at 105.11% of their face value

r three years from the issuance date at the option of the bondholders. {
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ther Financial Liabilities

ther short-term financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as
ollows:

millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 Januwary 1, 2010
Short-term financial liabilities
' |Accounts payable W 1,048,895 874,629 650,767
| Accrued expenses 457,070 415,657 352,060
| Dividends payable 5822 6,176 10,194
| Derivatives liabilities 146,903 90,384 34,880
| [Finance lease liabilities 15295 14073 63813
 Financia! guarantee liabilities 7,510 8919 -
| Withholding 129,695 111,039 -

hid 1,811,190 1,520.877 1054714

her long-term financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as
lows:

=

millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

ong-term financial liabilties

" |Accounts payable W 149,308 2438 4027
' |Accrued expenses 20,068 22348 74,482
Derivatives liabilities 48,934 11,925 8,831
. Finance lease liabilities 29,504 27,039 17,074
' Financial guarantee liabilities 24,732 19,046 6295
| Long-term withholding 78014 92978 94,387
W 350,560 175.774 205,096
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17. Provisions
(a) P}ovisions as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
(in mifmons of Won) December 11, 2011 December 31, 2010 Janvary 1, 2010

1 Current Non-curre nt Current Non-current Current Non-current
Provilin for borus payments W 47sR . 37978 - 20,861 .
Provisbn for construction wananties 19,656 20967 25,804 23,264 38,594 9,035
Provision for contingeney (¥1) - 38847 - 126,626 - -
Othets 2004 39529 27 2259 3,850 2970

; W 69432 109,343 63,309 152,149 63,305 12,005

¢1).

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, includes provision of W 38,847 million and W 75,817
million, respectively, for a potential claim in connection to the spin-off of the trading division of
chwoo International Corporation in 2000 (note 35).

(b) ¢lmnges in provisions for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:
!
(in wiflions of Won) Beginning _ Increase Decrease Others (*1) Ending
Pro jon for bonus payments W 37978 30,592 {20,888) - 47,682
Providion for construction warranties 49,068 30,724 (12,958) (16211) 50,623
Provigion for contingency 126,626 - - (80,7119) 38,847
Othars 2286 371 (272) 39.238 41,623
| W 215958 61687 (34,118) (64.752) 178775
*1n ‘ Include adjustments of foreign currency translation difference and transfer to non-current liability
‘held for sale.

(¢} ¢hanges in provisions for the year ended December 31, 2010 arc as follows:

(in inlllions of Won) Beginning _ Increase Decrease Others (*1) Ending
Provigion for bonus payments W 20,861 373,335 (356,134) (84) 37,978
Pmﬁkm for construction warranties 47,629 17,216 {15,705) (72) 49,068
Provigion for contingency - - - 126,626 126,626
Others 6,320 6,486 (14,843) 3823 2286

! W 75310 397,037 {386,682) 130,293 215,958

(*l)i]mclude adjustments of foreign currency translation difference and increase due to acquisition of

Daewoo International Corporation.
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|
18. Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans
|
|

e Company partially operates a defined contribution plan for participating employees. Though
th Company pays fixed contributions into a separate fund, employee benefits reiating to employee
service in the future is based on the contributions to the funds and the investment earnings on it.
El n assets are managed by a trustee as a separate fund from the Company’s assets. The expense

glated to post-employment benefit plans under defined contribution plans during the year ended
]r:; cember 31, 2011 is ¥ 8,874 million, which is included in profit or loss based on the function
flthe related employees.

ligation.

(c) 'hm amounts recognized in relation to defined benefit obligations in the statements of financial
position as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

ﬂ;: milfions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

Phscm value of funded obligations W 1,158,329 1,443,954 1,098475
F#ir value of plan assets (832,111) (964,727) (790,509)
Present value of non-funded obligations 14,909 23,800 7452

N#t defined benefit obligations W 340,467 503,126 315418

(d) The changes in present value of defined benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2011

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

W 1467853 1,105,927

207,871 156,308

67,372 57,473

43,166 189,501

221 52,641
{593,369) (102,837

; (19,876) 8,840
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year W 1,173,238 1,467,853

*1) This amount includes loss from a plan settlement in the amount of W 3,704 million for the year
e%mded December 31, 2011.
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December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Fair valie of pian assets at the beginning of period W 964,727 790,509
Expected return on plan assets 38,244 39810
Actuarial gains and losges 3,073 22,390

utions of participants 190,909 148,354

B }' ss combination 354 38,805
Othi 14,059 3473
Benefits paid {378,595) (78,614)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of period W 832,771 964,727

() The fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

f

millions of Won) December 31,2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

i ity instruments W 7,703 512,850 455,563
Debt instruments 103,074 289,907 288,282
Deposits 538,260 - -
Others 183,734 161,970 46,664

| W 832,771 964,727 790,509

(®) The amounts recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
fallows:
dn millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
¢mem service costs W 207871 156,308
Interest costs 67372 57473
Expected return on plan assets (38,244) (39,810

W 236,999 173,971

(h) The above expenses recognized in profit or loss are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
cS;Jst of goods sold W 177,020 137,263
ellling and administrative expenses 59,979 36,708
| W 236,999 173,971
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@ ALc cumulated actuarial gains and losses, net of tax, recognized in other comprehensive income as of
o and for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(iﬁ millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Beginning balance W (152,125) -
Current actuarial gains and losses (30,577) {152,125)

)] The principal actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

f? lows:

(936) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 20140
Digcount rate 3.86~5.42 31.22~5.66 3.22~5.66
Expected return on plan assets 2.00~5.29 3.38~6.19 3.38~6.19
Expected firture salary inceases 1.03~7.35 1.00~3.90 1.00~5.90

19. (tlther Liabilities

{(a) dt.her current liabilities as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(~ J (.fn millions of Won) _December3dl, 2011 December3l, 2010 _Janvary 1,2010
Due to customers for contract work W 440470 703,900 516611
| Advances received 973,427 484,155 320,825
| Unearned revenue 36,935 26,338 8497
| Withhelding accounts 114941 105,070 194,856
1 Deferred revenue 362 378 225
| Others (*1) 224,496 136221 114428
) |
|

o LT0G3 JASSO7L L LLIDA4Z

| Rg of December 31, 2011, 2010 and Januvary 1, 2010, respectively, due to proportionate consolidation of

(*1) IFIudes other current liabilities amounting to W 204,653 million, W 129,318 million and W 94,749 million
j int ventures which are owned by POSCO's subsidiaries.

{b) Cbther long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(in|millions of Won) December 31,2011~ December3l1, 2010 _January 1, 2010
dvances received W 1,547 3,583 40
Unearned revenue 1,200 1,539 2,364
rs (1) 81,756 75264 25987

| W 24,503 80386 28.30]

*1) in cludes other long-term liabilities amounting to W 14,857 million, W 12,254 million and W 10,957 million

ag of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010, respectively, due to proportionate consolidation of
jaint ventures which are owned by POSCO’s subsidiaries.

o

it
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20. *‘

(a) ¢lassiﬁcation of financial instruments

nancial Instruments

1P Financial assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

|(in mithons of Won)
i December 31,2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

Finencial assets at fair value through profit or loss

|| Finencial assets held for trading W 50,861 182208 795811
i | Derivatives assets held for trading 108,751 140,031 87.063
159612 322,239 882374
| Available-for-sale financial assets 4,608,557 6,126.926 5034237
i |Held-to-maturity securities 35574 39813 112,561
! |Loans and receivables 20210417 17,325,040 14,586,078
‘ W 25,014,200 238 1479-!.§. 20,615,750

Zb Financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

 (in millions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31,2010  January 1, 2010
. |Financia] Babilities at fair value through profit or loss ( -
? Derivatives liabilities held for trading W 195,837 102,309 43,11
Designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss 333,004 447,308 -
; 528,841 549617 43,711
. |Financial habilities evaluated as amortised cost
i| Trade accounts and notes payable 4397,662 3,981,079 2392317
Borrowings 26478.713 20,692,933 12,199,485
Financial guarantce liabilitics 32242 27,965 6,295
Others 1,933,671 1,566,377 1,209,803
32,842,288 26,268,354 15,807,900
W 33371,129 26,817,971 15851611
!
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3)

1)

2011 and 2010 is as follows:

@ December 31, 2011
iint milltons of Won) Fingnclgl {ncome sid costs
loss on Galn and logs
Interest forelgn on ferclgn Galnand
Income Dividend curreney cnrrency lass on
{eoit) Encoine transactions  _ tronslotions disposal Othiers Total
Financial assais at Dair value
lhrough profit or loss W k] - 544,913 70,656 513,572
Awailable-for-sale financial Asseis 61 142,080 453 340 {151,804) 5304
Held-to-mmurity securitics 1,749 - - - - (3L 1433
Loans md reccivables 213,714 - {26239) 46971 (41,E7) 5 193,180
Fimnginl {Eabilities nl
fodr vidua Lhrough peo Bt or loss - (506,664) (150,963} (657627
Finnactal liabdiistes aro ovaluatod
ag mmortised cost (788348 (140052) (317.867) (29956) _ {12433 .

Financial profit and loss by category of financial instrument for the years ended December 31,

Other
comprehenrsive
loss

(1,231,758)

(GILLIe 141330 [166:291) [270.895} 450,618 261478 (676276} (1,231,758)

(b) ¢1®dit risk

Credit risk exposure

follows:

(in milllons of Won)

Cash and cash equivaients

Trade accounts and notes receivable

Long-term trade aceounts and notes receivable

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
* |Available-for-sale financial assets
 |Held-to-maturity investments
 |Loans and other receivables

® December 31, 2010
1T mitlions of Won} Finaoeln) incomme and cosis
Loas an Gnlnwnd loss
Intorest foreign an foregn Gan and Other
income Dividend cnrrency currency o5t 0n comprebensive
{cnst) Incoec transsetions  _ irsslations dizposal Others Total incamo
Financial a3sc1s at fair waluc
throagh groi or loss w 196 - . 195,543 43,568 259,307 -
Awilnble-for-sale finmeln] et 9322 102,161 - 624 (57,133} S54M 530,600
Held-to-maturity seowities 1] - - . 465 - 519 .
Loans ond receivables 182846 . {18,528) 20,483 (2.82T} (4300 281,444
Financinl labilitics at
Tair vatue through profit or loss - (174,943} 1319 (167,624}
Finuncial lisbilitles are d
a8 amartisod sost (586.983) 34231 (230375} (6.157) {778.184) .
N__eaess | et 35503, . (21B89%) 18,862 LIS, (349.054) 380601

The carrying amount of financial assets is the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 is as

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
W 4,598,682 3,521,045 2,273,059
159,612 322239 882,874
4,608,597 6,126,926 5,034,237
35574 39813 112,561
3,978,159 4,311,362 64390011
11,450,515 9,219,011 5,300,233
183,061 273622 522,775
W 25,014,200 231814'218 20,615,750
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The Company provides financial guarantees to subsidiaries and has exposure to credit risk. The { "j
maximum credit exposures as December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are W 4,542,734
million, W 3,468,336 million and W 3,993,115 million, respectively.

2)|Impairment losses on financial assets

@ Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as

follows:
(in millions of Wou) December 31,2011 December 31, 2010 Jamuary 1, 2010
Trade accounts and notes receivable W 303,186 242,801 205,595
Other accounts receivable 36453 58,934 25443
Long-term loans 61,222 51244 23,505
Other assets 5860 4084 31,711
W 406,721 357,063 236,244
;@ Impairment losses on financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as
| follows:
(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011  December 31, 2010
Bad debt expenses W 103,848 51,185
Impairment of o
available-for-sale financial assets 152,804 57,172(; i
Impairment of
held to maturity financial assets 579 -
Other bad debt expenses 28,081 12,877
Less: Reversal of allowance
for doubtful accounts (86,452) (3,796)
Less: Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets - (38)
Less: Impairment of held to maturity
‘ financial assets (268) -
; W 198,592 117,400
@ The aging schedule and the impaired losses of trade accounts and notes receivables as of
December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
(in malitons of Won) Docamber 31,2011 December3], 2000 January 1. 2010
Trade accounts and Fracke accomts aod Trade accounts aml
unlea receivable Impaiment noies receivable Impairment noles receivable Itnpairment
Not duz W 6154045 8137 51554 - 4250288 -
Qwer cue less than | month 4868928 23 3,749,038 59064 445823 129
 maondh - 3 montha 256012 1,506 191,286 208 5,112 a0
3 montls - )2 monihy 01875 31002 455,14 15,597 2,699 25201
aver 12 meenths 38580 286208 224365 219222 450551 195
W 11936762 303,486 0735434 242801 6028603 2055
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(

2010 were as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Beginning

Bad debt expenses

Other bad debt expenses
Reversal of bad debt expenses
Other increase (decrease)

Ending

4 Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2011 and

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
W 357,063 286,344
103,848 51,185
28081 12,877
(86,452) (3,796)
4,181 10453
W 406,721 357,063

(¢} Liguidity risk
lj Contractual maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities, including e¢stimated interests, are
.| as follows:
. :. Cazh flow for Due i year Inte r than
fin """‘"" of Hen) Book value contracts within 1 yenr - § yoors 8 yours Toial
Non-gdrijtbve Minancial Tabikics
Trade posounts payable w 4397682 4397662 43572 383 - 407662
Finsoc] guarswes Kabitics (*1) 32242 4541034 4347.72 . . 454174
Othar fimnail bnbilirks 1933671 19334671 185678 264837 10,056 LI3ETI
Borrpapings (°2} 26311717 DO 11.891.293 13463085 4218391 20573.269
! W 33,115202 40553330 22593082 13790303 228,947 40352316

(*1) For issued financial gurantee contracts, the maximum amount of the gurantee is allocated to
the earliest period in which the guarantee could be called.
(*2) Includes cash flows of embedded derivative instruments in relation to exchangeable bonds

{exchange right).
The maturity analysis of derivative financial liabilities is as follows;
; Over due loss 1 year later than
fons of Won) than 1 year -5 yenrs 5 years Total
ive financial liabilities
ncy forward W 135813 20986 - 156,799
ncy futures 141 - - 141
ncy swaps - 14,885 149 15,034
10,949 12914 - 23,863
W 146,903 48,785 149 195,837
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(d) ¢1Jrrency risk
1)| The Company has exposure to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
| instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The exposure to
| currency risk as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 is as follows:
‘ (in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
1 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
| UsD W 3852909 10,912,382 3485974 8,440,832 1,114,116 2911218
' EUR 275,012 510,454 382,573 518,244 61,989 00,200
| IPY 236,046 2,353,794 188060 2,642,725 6749 2268593
| Others 130,753 136,294 60,066 41,011 59,923 30,754
2)| As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, provided that functional currency against foreign currencies

other than functional currency hypothetically strengthens or weakens by 10%, the changes in
|gain or loss during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

December 31, 2010

10% increase 10% decrease

78

(in millions of Won) December 31, 2011

10% increase  10% decrease
USD W (705,997) 705,997
EUR {33,544) 33,544
JPY {211,775 211,775

(495,486)
(13,567)
(245,467)

495,486
13,567
245,467
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{e) ﬁ]temst rate risk
1)| The carrying amount of interest-bearing financial instruments as of December 31, 2011, 2010

' | and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

i | (in millions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010

1 Fixed rate

'|  Financial assets W 7,086,835 7,008,969 8,839.475
Financial liabilities (24,169.245) (19495665) (11,475,986)

‘ (17,082,410) {12,486,696) {2,636,511)

| Variable rate

| Financiel Gabilities W (2,642,472) (1,644,576) (723,499)

. iduring the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2)|Sensitivity analysis on the fair value of financial instruments with variable interest rate

'|As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, provided that other factors remain the same and the interest
rate of borrowings with floating rates increases or decreases by 1%, the changes in gain or loss

( ™ (3] FFh value

1) [Fair value and book value

| |and January 1, 2010 are as follows

! |{in miflions of Wan} December 31, 2011 December 31,2010
: 1% ncrease 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrenge
| |Variable rate financial instruments W (26,425) 26425 (16,446) 16,446

' | The carrying amount and the fair value of financial instruments as of December 31, 2011, 2010

{ini niitlions of Won) December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
Book Volue Fair Value Book Value _ _ Foir Vake  _ Book Vahe  _Fak Vake
japts measured fak valoe
ncial assets held for trding W 50,861 50,851 182,208 182,208 795,811 795,811
Avaiable-for-sale fnancial assots 4390224 4,390,224 5,766,998 5,765,998 4,612,580 4,512,580
] rivatives asseta held for trading 108,751 108,751 140031 140,031 87,063 87,063
! 4549836 4349836 6089237 6089237 3495434 5485454
measured amorlised cost
h and cash cquivalents 4,593,682 4,593,682 3521045 3,521,045 2273059 2,273,059
i‘ de accounts and noles receivable 11,533,575 11,633,576 9492,633 9492,633 5,823,008 5,323,008
s and ollier receivables 3978159 3978159 4,311,362 4311362 6,490,011 6490011
Id-to-maturity nvesiments 35,574 35,574 39813 39,813 112,581 112,561
i 20,245,991 20,245,991 17,364,853 17,364,853 14,508 639 14,698,639
Liabilites measured foir value
ivatives liabilitles hekd for irading 195,837 195,837 102,309 102,309 43711 43,711
Convertible bonds 333004 333,004 447308 447308 - .
i szm 528841 549.617 549& 43,711 43,711
Liob{lities measured amoriised cost
de accounts and notes payable 4,397,662 4,397,662 3,981,079 3,981,079 2392317 2302317
ings 26,478,713 26,793,230 20,692,933 20,549483 12,199485 12,210,969
ncial guaranice biliies 32242 2292 27965 27965 6,295 6,295
or8 1,933,671 1933,67% 1,566,377 1,566,377 1209803 1,209,804
W__32842288 33,156,803 26,268,354 26,124,904 15.807.900 15819385
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2)

3)

|January 1, 2010 are as follows:

Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and

December 31,2011  December3l, 2010 January 1, 2010

| Interest rate of Borrowings (%) 1.8~ 4.62 1.19~5.14 1.28~5.38

The fair value hierarchy

@ The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the

significance of the inputs used in measurements.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2; inputs, other then quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
uncbservable inputs).

: @ The fair values of financial instruments, by valuation method as of December 31, 2011, 2010

and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

a. December 31, 2011

(in millions of Won) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets . -
Financial assets held for trading W - 50,861 - 50,861
Available-for-sale financial assets 3410961 31,022 030,241 4,300,224
Derivatives assets held for trading - 108,751 - 108,751
3419961 190,634 939,241 4,540,836
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives liabilities held for trading - 195,837 - 195,837
Convertible bonds 333,004 - - 333,004
W 333,004 195,837 - 528,841
b. December 31, 2010
(in millions of Won) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets held for trading W - 182,208 - 182,208
Available-for-sale financial assets 4,944 644 17,154 805,160 5,766,998
Derivatives assets held for trading - 140,031 - 140,031
4,944,644 339433 805,160 6,089,237
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives liabilities held for trading - 102,300 - 162,309
Convertible bonds 447308 - - 447,308
W 447,308 102,309 - 549,617
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c. January 1, 2010

(in millions of Won) Levell Level 2 Level3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets held for trading W - 795,811 - 795,811
Available-for-sale financial assets 3967463 6,714 638,403 4,612,580
Derivatives assets held for trading - 87,063 - 87,063
3.967463 599,588 638,403 5,205,454
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives liabilities held for trading W - 43,71 - 43711

December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

a. December 31, 2011

| (3 Changes in fair value of financial instruments measured by Level 3 for the years ended

S Acquisition, Disposal,
(in miflions of Wan) Beginning Valuation others (*1) others (*1) Ending
Available-for-sale fimancial assets W 805,160 157,329 98,242 {121,490) 939,241
(*1) Included change in amounts due to change of fair value level,
b. December 31, 2010

Acquisition, Dispasal,
(in millions of Won) Begllming Valuation others (*1) others (*1) Ending
Available-for-sale financial assels W 638403 11,568 164,382 (9,193) 805,160

(*1) Included change in amounts due to change of fair value level,
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21, S are Capital and Contributed Surplus

(a) $ are capital

U der the Articles of Incorporation, the Company is authorized to issue 200 million shares of
d pital stock with par value of W 5,000 per share. As of December 31, 2011, exclusive of retired
st ck, 87,186,835 shares of common stock have been issued.

T e Company is authorized, with the Board of Directors’ approval, to retire treasury stock in

accordance with applicable laws up to the maximum amount of certain undistributed earnings.
e 9,293,790 shares of common stock were retired with the Board of Directors’ approval.

A of December 31, 2011, total shares of ADRs are 52,974,264 equivalents to 13,243,566 of

¢

mmon shares.

A of December 31, 2011, ending balance of capital stock amounts to W 482,403 million;
ﬁ wever, it is different from par value of issued common stock, which amounted to W 435,934

llion, due to retirement of treasury stock.

b Capital surplus

Capital surplus as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
Share premium W 463,825 463,825 463,825
bains on sale of treasury stock 763,867 694,714 694,714
Capital surplus (77,240) (56,978) 41,127
W 1,150,452 1,101,561 1,199,666
22. keserves
{a) Rncscrvcs as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as follows:
|
{in millions af Wan} December3L, 2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
Agcumulated comprehensive income (loss)
j of investments in associates W {16,186) (3,909) 33,747
Fgir value of available-for-sale financial mvestments 154,617 1,381,667 804,716
Clurency transhtion differences 283,516 136,669 -
Others (16,521) (7.139) {4.657)
! W 405,426 1,507 288 833,806
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(b) Changes in fair value of available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1,
2010 are as follows:

(i millions of Won) December 31,2011  December 31, 2010
Beginning balance W 1,381,667 804,716
Changes in fair-value of

 available-for-sale securities (974,031) 593,946
Reclassification to profit or loss

uipon disposal (252,102) {1,665)
Others (917) (15,330)
Ending balance W 154,617 1,381,667

23. Treasury Shares

In J#nuary 2011, the Company sold 342,955 shares of treasury stock for ¥ 164,384 million and
recohpuized W 69,153 million, net of tax, as a gain on sale of treasury stock in capital surplus. Also,
the Qompany acquired 131,389 shares of treasury stock for W 61,296 million in 2011. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company holds 9,942,391 shares of treasury stock for price stabilization in
(_}  accordance with the Board of Director’s resolution.

““““
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ck Appreciation Rights

e Company granted stock appreciation rights to its executive officers in accordance with the

stock appreciation rights plan approved by the Board of Directors. The details of the stock
ippreciation rights granted are as follows:

1) Class of shares: registered common stock

i) The number of shares, Exercise price per share, Exercise period

.| (per share, won) 6th Grant

| Granted 90,000
Exercised 64,000

-| Unexercised 26,000

| Exercise price W 194,900

' | Exercise period ‘ 2007.4.29~2012.4.28

{b) E‘xpenses related to stock appreciation rights granted to executives incurred for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in|nillions af Won) 4th Grant Sth Grant Gth Grant Total

Actuimulated reversal of stock ( o
icompensation expenses as of December 31, 2010 (83) (9.681) {(3463) (13,227) ’
Reyersal of stock compensation expenses
%ﬁ:n' the year ended December 31,2011 - {1,530) (2,693) (4,223)

(c) The Company uses a fair value approach for calculating remuneration cost. The method and
agsumption for computing fair value of stock appreciation rights are as follows:

6th Grant
Risk-free interest rate 3.43%
Option life 104
xpected volatility 0.1659
Rate of expected dividends 2.63%
ock price W 380,000
w 184,157

Fhir value of share options
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i
25. ‘ nstruction Contracts
(a) ? nstruction contracts in progress as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and January 1, 2010 are as
ollows
(‘: millions of Won) December 31,2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
A gate amount of costs incurred W 14,711,524 12,778,567 8,846,030
1Add : Recognized profits 1,369,479 1,202,835 048,616
Less : Recognized losses (310,647) (197,818) (202,275)
mulative construction revenue 15,770,356 13,783,584 9,592,371
iLLess ; Progress billing (14,638,181) (13,505,203) (9,388,120)
ﬁ ign cwrrency gains and losses (1,966} (1,744) 1
Others {218,263} {5,906) {21,570)
W 911,946 270,731 182.682
) Amount due from and due to customers for contract work as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and
January 1, 2010 are as follows:
(1?:1 millions of Won) December 31,2011 December 31, 2010 January 1, 2010
Due from customers for contract work W 1,361,416 974,631 699,203
Die to customers for contract work {449.470) (703,900) (516,611)
| W 011,046 270,731 182,682
26. l#evenue
Detaﬁls of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:;
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
W 59,915,941 41,848201
2,440,639 1,604,524
5,297.892 4,130,984
39,862 42 308
1,244 391 260,648
W 68,938,725 47887255
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